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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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In January, the International Monetary Fund indicated that the global economy would, during 2015, grow at a 
slower pace from 3.5 per cent to 3.4 percent.  The economies of oil producing countries in particular had been 
expected to be adversely affected by relatively lower oil prices. Malaysia, however, is in a relatively better position 
than most other oil producing countries due to its highly diversified economy.

The current economic climate had in fact aided in boosting the tourism industry in Sabah, offering good value to 
tourists, as well as increasing the competitiveness of Malaysian exports, such as oil and gas. Sabah is now well 
positioned for this development, especially in the Sandakan and Lahad Datu Palm Oil Industrial Clusters, Sabah 
Oil and Gas Industrial Park, Marine Integrated Cluster, Sabah Agro-Industrial Precinct, Keningau Integrated 
Livestock Centre, Kinabalu Gold Coast Enclave, Sapangar Bay Container Port, and many more. The Sabah 
Development Corridor had certainly served as a catalyst, as the engine of growth in realising our economic 
aspirations.

SEDIA has taken the necessary steps to align priorities in the SDC in accordance with the government’s revised 
alignment and priorities. The SDC programme also leveraged on the establishment of the ASEAN Economic 
Community (AEC) on 31 December 2015. The AEC shall be built on four interrelated and mutually-reinforcing 
characteristics: a single market and production base, a highly competitive economic region, a region of equitable 
economic development, and a region fully integrated into the global economy. The establishment of AEC brings 
about opportunities in the form of a huge market worth over US$ 2.5 trillion. Collectively, the region is the seventh 
largest economy in the world and, with a population of over 622 million people, representing the third largest 
market base in the world, behind only China and India.

I am happy to note that Sabah has continued to attract investments in spite of the global economic challenges. 
Sabah has indeed been emerging as an attractive destination for investors, being strategically located within South 
East Asia, and at the heart of ASEAN, one of the world’s fastest growth areas. It offers immense opportunities 
for both domestic and international investors. Sabah can serve as an ideal gateway to the dynamic East Asian 
economies, and potentially to the Asia Pacific region, with the conclusion of the Trans-Pacific Partnership 
Agreement negotiation. 

As at December 2015, a total of RM153.4 billion worth of cumulative investments have been committed in SDC 
since its launch in 2008, of which RM55.3 billion had already been realised. As at December 2015, disbursement 
for SDC projects under the Tenth Malaysia Plan had been estimated at RM869.9 million, or 90% of the total 
allocation received by SEDIA. A total of RM1.77 billion or 93.46% of the RM1.89 billion development allocations 
received by SEDIA since the launch of the SDC had been disbursed by the end of 2015. It is therefore not 
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surprising that Sabah’s GDP had expanded strongly to reach 6.1 percent in 2015, surpassing the national GDP 
growth at 5.0 percent, in spite of the global economic challenges.

I am pleased to note that the management and staff of SEDIA have been mindful of the need to maintain a high 
standard of operational efficiency in service delivery while at the same time without compromising the principles 
of integrity and good corporate governance in the performance of their duties. In view of this, SEDIA has once 
again been given a clean bill of health in its 2015 Financial Report by Jabatan Audit Negara. This is the seventh 
consecutive year SEDIA has been receiving a clean bill of health.  

These efforts had been made possible through the hard work and contribution of the Members of the Authority, the 
various SEDIA committees and its members, and management and staff of SEDIA in realising the programmes 
and initiatives through the SDC. I would like to express my appreciation to them, as well as the State and 
Federal agencies that have lent their close cooperation in ensuring the effective implementation and development 
activities under the SDC.

The close cooperations maintained by our stakeholders, be they from the public or private sectors, and Federal 
and State agencies, have been instrumental in ensuring the successful implementation of programmes and 
initiatives under the Sabah Development Corridor, and I therefore urge for everyone to continue providing their 
support to SEDIA.
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SEDIA is completing the Second Phase of SDC and the Tenth Malaysia Plan, and now preparing for launching 
the Third Phase of SDC, coinciding with the beginning of the First Rolling Plan under the Eleventh Malaysia Plan. 
It is therefore timely for SEDIA to take stock of the performance of SDC during the Second Phase while setting 
the direction and strategies for the Third Phase. 

The Second Phase of the SDC, spanning from 2011 to 2015 and coinciding with the Tenth Malaysia Plan, has 
been instrumental in accelerating the development of Sabah, and mobilising greater private sector participation, 
in line with the National Key Economic Areas as set out in the Economic Transformation Programme. The 
development activities as well as private sector investment cover key industries in the state, including tourism, 
oil, gas and energy, palm oil, agriculture, education, and manufacturing and logistics; as well as Greater Kota 
Kinabalu development.

In view of the aggressive measures to promote investment and enhance the attractiveness of Sabah to investors 
through targeted infrastructure upgrading, the state’s economy managed to expand steadily from 2.1 percent at 
the beginning of the Second Phase to 6.1 percent by the end of the Second Phase in 2015. This expansion is the 
fastest in Malaysia, with the exception of Labuan, surpassing even the national GDP at 5.0 percent.

Going forward, during the Third Phase, SEDIA will accord greater emphasis on enhancing the State’s global 
connectivity commencing with the Eleventh Malaysia Plan, to ensure seamless movement of people, goods 
and services. This emphasis is timely as the State transforms into a diversified, knowledge-intensive with higher 
value-added economy. Efforts will be directed especially towards enhancing the efficiency of the logistics sector 
by improving the relevant infrastructure and the integration of land, sea, and air services.  Measures shall be 
introduced during the Third Phase of SDC to upgrade Sapangar Bay Container Port into a transhipment hub. An 
aviation masterplan shall also be prepared to enhance air connectivity between Sabah and eastern Malaysia to 
the Asia Pacific economies. These developments will allow Sabah to optimise its strategic geographical location 
within ASEAN Economic Community (AEC) and access to the Trans-Pacific Partnership Agreement (TPPA) 
member countries. 

The Third Phase of the SDC will also have SEDIA according greater priority to developing small and medium 
industries and enterprises, especially among Bumiputera enterpreneurs. The SME Incubation programme at the 
Sabah Agro-Industrial Precinct is currently underway, with the first batch of entrepreneurs having commenced 
in June 2015. The previous phase of the programme, the 1Agro-SAIP training courses, had so far seen over a 
thousand participants exposed to agro industry-related training. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S ANNUAL REVIEW
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Aggressive measures will also be made to boost the available pool of skilled labour in Sabah. To further augment 
the State’s human capital development, SEDIA has been engaging with industry players for Technical Vocational 
Education and Training (TVET) and Sistem Latihan Dual Nasional (SLDN) programme, as well as the Yayasan 
Peneraju Pendidikan Bumiputera initiative under TERAJU. This will complement the Human Capital Development 
Committee led by the Institute for Development Studies, Sabah (IDS).

The Management and staff of SEDIA are committed to ensuring a high standard of integrity and corporate 
governance in the performance of their duties and responsibilities. The Auditor General had given a four star 
rating, the highest rating, to SEDIA in financial management under its Accountability Index on 24 November 2014. 
The Auditor General had also given a clean bill of health to SEDIA for its financial management for the year 2015. 
The management process in SEDIA had been certified as complying with the internationally accredited Quality 
Management System standard by Lloyd’s Register Quality Assurance – MS ISO 9001: 2008.

As the Second Phase of the SDC comes to a close, sincere thanks and appreciation goes out to the SEDIA 
Members of Authority, committee, management and staff for ensuring the efficient implementation of all projects, 
programmes and initiatives.

DATUK DR. MOHD YAAKUB HJ. JOHARI, J.P.
President / Chief Executive SEDIA

Sabah Development Corridor



The Sabah Development Corridor (SDC) was launched on 29 January 2008 to enhance the quality of life of the 
people by accelerating the growth of Sabah’s economy, promoting regional balance and bridging the rural-urban 
divide while ensuring sustainable management of the state’s resources. It is part of the five economic corridors 
inspired by the former Prime Minister Y.A.B. Tun Abdullah bin Haji Ahmad Badawi. It is in line with the key thrusts 
and objectives of the Halatuju Pembangunan dan Kemajuan Negeri Sabah, launched in 2004 by Y.A.B. Datuk 
Seri Panglima Musa Haji Aman, Chief Minister of Sabah, which outlines the direction of the state’s development.

The theme for the SDC is Harnessing Unity in Diversity for Wealth Creation and Social Well-Being. The concept 
of the SDC is also in line with the theme of One Malaysia: People First, Performance Now announced by Y.A.B. 
Datuk Seri Panglima Mohd Najib bin Tun Haji Abdul Razak, the current Prime Minister.

The SDC programmes are underpinned by the three key principles that will guide development in Sabah, namely 
the need to:

• Capture higher value economic activities
• Promote balanced economic growth with distribution
• Ensure sustainable growth via environmental conservation

The initiative by Y.A.B. Datuk Seri Panglima Mohd Najib to introduce a new high income service-based economic 
model driven by creativity, innovation and high value is clearly consistent with the principles underpinning the 
SDC programmes. Under the SDC initiative, sub-regions and growth centres will be planned systematically to 
ensure optimum resources utilisation, and development efforts are well-coordinated and sustainable.

The initial focus is on enhancing Sabah’s liveability index and making it a business friendly location via targeted 
infrastructure upgrading and by lowering the cost of doing business.

By 2025, the SDC initiative aims to triple Sabah’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) per capita and increase its GDP 
by four times through the implementation of the prioritised programmes. In total, more than 900,000 new jobs are 
expected to be generated during the SDC implementation period.
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The launching ceremony for the Bio Borneo 2015 conference and exhibition, with attendance by (left to right) SaBC Director Dr. Abdul Fatah Amir, SEDIA 
Chief Executive Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Johari, MOSTI Minister Datuk Dr. Ewon Ebin, Deputy Chief Minister cum Minister of Agriculture and Food 
Industry Datuk Seri Panglima Haji Yahya Hussin, MOSTI Deputy Minister Datuk Dr. Abu Bakar Mohd Diah, Senior Under Secretary (Planning) of MOSTI 
Mr. Kamal Bin Mohamad and BiotechCorp CEO Dato’ Dr. Mohd Nazlee Kamal

BACKGROUND
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Vision

Mission

The vision for Sabah is to be a vibrant, economically successful and liveable state by articulating a set of five 
unique attributes that will mould the future of this state:

• A preferred gateway for trade, investment and leisure for leading businesses and talents in key areas from 
around the world

• A happy and cohesive community that lives in harmony and prosperity regardless of race language or religion

• A tech-savvy state that uses and showcases technology in enhancing the quality of daily life

• A place of opportunity where residents and foreign talents find rewarding employment opportunities

• Among the most liveable places in Asia with culture, heritage, quality of life and a clean environment

In line with the state’s Halatuju and the National Mission announced by the Prime Minister of Malaysia, the 
mission for the SDC is to support Sabah in achieving this vision by:

• Moving up the economic value chain

• Raising the capacity for knowledge and innovation, and nurturing ‘first class mentality’

• Addressing persistent socio-economic inequalities constructively and positively

• Improving the standard and sustainability of quality of life

• Strengthening the institutional and implementation capacity
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SDC ALIGNMENT WITH CORRIDORS AND
CITIES TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME

Following the launch of the Economic Transformation Programme (ETP), the Prime Minister had announced the 
formulation of the Corridors and Cities Transformation programme which saw a lab being conducted. The key 
objective was to align the regional corridors programme with the Tenth Malaysia Plan, ETP and National Key 
Economic Areas (NKEAs). Pursuant to the alignment initiative, the role of Kota Kinabalu was further consolidated 
in support of and complementing the economic initiatives under the Sabah Development Corridor, while the Sabah 
Development Corridor saw renewed focus through six Key Focus Areas (KFAs): Tourism; Palm Oil; Agriculture; 
Oil, Gas and Energy; Education; and Manufacturing and Logistics.
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Various facilities are made available to potential agro-entrepreneur incubators based in the Sabah Agro-Industrial Precinct (SAIP).

Sabah Development Corridor



STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT AREAS (SDAs) UNDER SDC
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SEDIA Chairman Datuk Seri Panglima Musa Haji Aman (5th from right) launching the SEDIA Annual Report 2014, during the 20th Members 
of Authority meeting



SEDIA AS THE ONE STOP AUTHORITY

SEDIA has been entrusted as the One-Stop Authority to drive the SDC, with the primary responsibility to 
plan, coordinate, promote and accelerate the development of the SDC.

Initial development allocations had been approved for implementation under the SDC via the Mid-Term 
Review of the Ninth Malaysian Plan. The SDC Development Fund was channelled through the Sabah 
Economic Development and Investment Authority, or SEDIA.

In order to expedite the implementation of the SDC, the Sabah State Legislative Assembly had approved 
the instrument for the establishment of SEDIA via the adoption of Sabah Economic Development and 
Investment Authority Enactment 2009 on 15 January 2009. The Enactment was assented by Tuan Yang 
Terutama Yang Di-Pertua Negeri Sabah on 23 February and gazetted on 26 February 2009.

Objectives of SEDIA

• To promote and accelerate the development of the Sabah Development Corridor into a leading 
economic region and a choice destination for investment, work and living; and

• To ensure that social development and sustainable development are kept as priorities whilst driving 
economic growth in the Sabah Development Corridor.

Membership of the Authority

The Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority 2009 Enactment under Section 8 stipulates 
that:-

(1)     The Authority shall consist of the following members:

 (a) a Chairman, who shall be the Chief Minister;

 (b) two Deputy Chairmen, who shall be appointed by the Minister;

 (c) State Secretary;

 (d) Secretary General of the Federal Ministry of Finance or his representative;

 (e) Permanent Secretary of the State Ministry of Finance;

 (f)  Director General of the Federal Economic Planning Unit or his representative;

 (g) Director of the State Economic Planning Unit; and

 (h) not more than five other members to be appointed by the Minister

(2)     The Chief Executive shall be the Secretary to the Authority

(3) The provisions of the First Schedule shall apply to the Authority

(4) The Authority may, from time to time, by order published in the Gazette, amend the First   
 Schedule
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Establishment of Committees

Under Section 9, the Authority may establish committees deemed necessary subject to the following 
provisions:

(1) The Authority may, from time to time, establish such committees on such terms as it considers  
 necessary or expedient to assist the Authority in the performance of its functions and duties  
 under this Enactment.

(2)    The Authority may elect any of its members to be the chairman of any committee.

(3)   The Authority may appoint any person to be a member of any committee.

(4)    Membership of a committee established under subsection (1) may include one or more   
 individuals from private sector.

(5) The provisions of the Second Schedule shall apply to a committee.

(6) The Authority may, from time to time, by order published in the Gazette, amend the Second  
 Schedule relating to a committee.

 

The Governance of SEDIA
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The Members of Authority meetings are chaired by SEDIA Chairman Y.A.B. Datuk Seri Panglima Musa Haji Aman
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MEMBERS OF SEDIA

Y.Bhg. Datuk 
Pg. Hassanel 

B. Datuk 
Pg. Hj Mohd Tahir,

Permanent Secretary, 
Ministry of Finance, 

Sabah

Y.Bhg. Dato’ 
Ahmad Husni Hussain

Director General, 
Unit Kerjasama 

Awam Swasta (UKAS)

Y.Bhg. Tan Sri 
Dato’ Dr. Mohd Irwan 
Serigar bin Abdullah,
Secretary General 

to the Treasury, 
Ministry of 

Finance Malaysia

Y.B. Tan Sri 
Datuk Seri Panglima 

Sukarti Wakiman
Sabah State 

Secretary

Y.Bhg. Datuk 
Peter Pang En Yin
Deputy Chairman 

of SEDIA

Y.A.B. Datuk 
 Seri Panglima 

Musa Haji Aman
Chief Minister and 
Minister of Finance 

Sabah 
cum Chairman of SEDIA

Y.Bhg. Datuk 
Dr. Mohd Yaakub 

Hj Johari, J.P.
President/

Chief Executive 
of SEDIA
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MEMBERS OF SEDIA

Y.A.B. Datuk 
 Seri Panglima 

Musa Haji Aman
Chief Minister and 
Minister of Finance 

Sabah 
cum Chairman of SEDIA

Y.B. Tan Sri 
Datuk Seri Panglima  

Joseph Pairin Kitingan
Deputy Chief Minister/ 

Minister of
Infrastructure 

Development, Sabah/ Deputy 
Chairman of SEDIA

Y.Bhg. Tan Sri 
Datuk Seri Panglima 

Dr. Ali Hamsa
Chief Secretary 

to the Government

Y.Bhg. Tan Sri 
Datuk Seri Panglima 
Dr. Wan Abdul Aziz 
bin Wan Abdullah,

Chairman, Malaysia 
Airports Holdings Berhad

Y.Bhg. Datuk 
Dr. Rahamat Bivi Yusoff

Director General, 
Economic Planning Unit (EPU)

Not in the picture:
Y.Bhg. Datuk Hj. Osman Hj. Jamal, Director, State Economic Planning Unit (UPEN)



The committee held two meetings in 2015, as follows:

13th Implementation Coordination Committee meeting   .................... 16th February 2015
14th Implementation Coordination Committee meeting   .................... 26th October 2015

Implementation Coordination Committee

Chairman:  Y.B. Tan Sri Datuk Seri Panglima Sukarti Wakiman
      Sabah State Secretary 

Members:   Y.Bhg. Dato’ Ahmad Husni Hussain
      Director General; Unit Kerjasama Awam Swasta (UKAS)

                    Y.Bhg. Dato’ Abu Bakar bin Hassan
                   Sabah Federal Secretary 

      Y.Bhg. Datuk Abidin Madingkir
      Mayor; Kota Kinabalu City Hall 

      Y.Bhg. Datuk Hj. Masood Hj. Salleh
      Permanent Secretary; Ministry of Rural Development

      Y.Bhg. Datuk Haji Ujang Sulani
       Permanent Secretary; Ministry of Agriculture and Food Industry

      Y.Bhg. Datuk Ginun Yangus
      Permanent Secretary; Ministry of Tourism, Culture and Environment

      Y.Bhg. Datuk Matius bin Sator
      Permanent Secretary; Ministry of Local Government and Housing

      Y.Bhg. Datuk Haji Matusin B. Sunsang
       State Development Officer; Sabah State Development Office

      Y.Bhg. Datuk Hj. Osman Hj. Jamal
      Director; State Economic Planning Unit (UPEN)

      Mr. Hj. Safar Bin Untong
      Director; Land and Survey Department

      Mr. Mursidi Haji Sapi
      Director; Department of Urban and Regional Planning Sabah

      Y.Bhg. Datuk Ir. John Anthony
      Director; Public Works Department

      Y.Bhg. Datuk Hj. Hashim B. Paijan
      Permanent Secretary; Ministry of Industrial Development 

      Y.Bhg. Datuk Mohd Hasnol B. Ayub
      Executive Director; Institute for Development Studies (IDS) Sabah

                   Y.Bhg. Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Hj. Johari
                   Chief Executive of SEDIA

SEDIA COMMITTEES
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The committee held three meetings in 2015, as follows:

16th Finance and Investment Committee meeting  .................... 17th February 2015
17th Finance and Investment Committee meeting  .................... 30th June 2015
18th Finance and Investment Committee meeting  .................... 30th November 2015 

Finance and Investment Committee

Chairman:  Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Datuk Seri Panglima Dr. Wan Abdul Aziz bin Wan Abdullah
      Chairman; Malaysia Airports Holdings Berhad

Members:   Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Mohd Irwan Serigar bin Abdullah
      Secretary General to the Treasury; Ministry of Finance Malaysia

      Y.Bhg. Dato’ Ahmad Husni Hussain
      Director General; Unit Kerjasama Awam Swasta (UKAS)

      Y.Bhg. Datuk Borhan Bin Dolah
       Sabah Federal Secretary

      Y.Bhg. Datuk Pg. Hassanel B. Datuk Pg. Hj Mohd Tahir
          Permanent Secretary; Ministry of Finance of Sabah

      Y.Bhg. Datuk Haji Ujang Sulani
        Permanent Secretary; Ministry of Agriculture and Food Industry

      Y.Bhg. Datuk Haji Hashim bin Paijan
      Permanent Secretary; Ministry of Industrial Development

      Y.Bhg. Datuk Ginun Yangus
       Permanent Secretary; Ministry of Tourism, Culture and Environment

      Y.Bhg. Datuk Hj. Osman Hj. Jamal
      Director; State Economic Planning Unit (UPEN)

      Madam Habibah Enok
      Director; Malaysia Investment Development Authority, Sabah

      Y.Bhg. Datuk Mohd Hasnol B. Ayub
      Executive Director; Institute for Development Studies (IDS) Sabah

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Hj. Johari
      Chief Executive of SEDIA

SEDIA COMMITTEES

The Governance of SEDIA
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The SEDIA Finance and Investment Committee during a visit to the Mitsui Outlet Park at Sepang, following the 17th committee meeting



The committee held two meetings in 2015, as follows:

12th Development Planning Committee meeting  .................... 23rd March 2015
13th Development Planning Committee meeting  .................... 30th July 2015

Development Planning Committee

Chairman:  Y.Bhg. Dato’ Ahmad Husni Hussain
       Director General; Unit Kerjasama Awam Swasta (UKAS)

Members:   Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Mohd Irwan Serigar bin Abdullah
       Secretary General to the Treasury; Ministry of Finance Malaysia 
 
       Y.Bhg. Datuk Razali bin Che Mat
       Director of Regional Development; Economic Planning Unit, Prime Minister’s Deparment 
     
       Tuan Hj. Daman Huri Nor
       Director of Corridor Development; UKAS

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Borhan Bin Dolah
       Sabah Federal Secretary 

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Haji Hashim bin Paijan
       Permanent Secretary; Ministry of Industrial Development

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Haji Ujang Sulani
       Permanent Secretary; Ministry of Agriculture and Food Industry

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Matius Sator
       Permanent Secretary; Ministry of Local Government and Housing

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Haji Masood Haji Salleh
 
       Permanent Secretary; Ministry of Rural Development

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Haji Matusin B. Sunsang
       State Development Officer; Sabah State Development Office

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Hj. Osman Hj. Jamal
       Director; State Economic Planning Unit (UPEN)

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Mohd Hasnol B. Ayub
       Executive Director; Institute for Development Studies (IDS) Sabah

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Hj. Johari
       Chief Executive of SEDIA

SEDIA COMMITTEES

25   |    Annual Report 2015  

Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority



Nomination, Establishment and Remuneration Committee

Members:   Y.B. Tan Sri Datuk Seri Panglima Joseph Pairin Kitingan
       Deputy Chief Minister and Minister of Infrastructure Development, Sabah

       Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Mohd Irwan Serigar bin Abdullah
       Secretary General to the Treasury; Ministry of Finance Malaysia 

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Pg. Hassanel B. Datuk Pg. Hj Mohd Tahir
       Permanent Secretary; Ministry of Finance of Sabah

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Hj. Osman Hj. Jamal
       Director; State Economic Planning Unit (UPEN)

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Mohd Hasnol B. Ayub
       Executive Director; Institute for Development Studies (IDS) Sabah
 
       Y.Bhg. Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Hj. Johari
       Chief Executive of SEDIA
      

The committee held two meetings in 2015, as follows:

12th Nomination, Establishment and Remuneration Committee meeting .................... 20th March 2015
13th Nomination, Establishment and Remuneration Committee meeting .................... 6th August 2015

SEDIA COMMITTEES

The Governance of SEDIA
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The SEDIA Nomination, Establishment and Remuneration Committee held a site visit at the Keningau Integrated Livestock Centre (KILC), 
in conjunction with the 13th committee meeting



The committee held three meetings in 2015, as follows:

15th Audit Committee meeting  .................... 13th March 2015  
16th Audit Committee meeting  .................... 26th June 2015
17th Audit Committee meeting  .................... 2nd November 2015

Audit Committee

Chairman:  Y.Bhg. Datuk Peter Pang En Yin

Members:   Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Mohd Irwan Serigar bin Abdullah
       Secretary General to the Treasury; Ministry of Finance Malaysia 

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Pg. Hassanel B. Datuk Pg. Hj Mohd Tahir
       Permanent Secretary; Ministry of Finance of Sabah     
 
       Y.Bhg. Datuk Haji Matusin B. Sunsang
                    State Development Officer; Sabah State Development Office

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Hj. Osman Hj. Jamal
 
       Director; State Economic Planning Unit (UPEN)

       Miss Chui Nget Ngo
       Sabah State Treasurer; State Treasury Department, Ministry of Finance

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Hj. Johari
 
       Chief Executive of SEDIA

SEDIA COMMITTEES
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Datuk Peter Pang En Yin (centre), seen chairing the 16th Audit Committee
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Consultative Panel and Focus Group Committee

Chairman:  Y.Bhg. Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Hj. Johari
      Chief Executive of SEDIA

Members:   Y.Bhg. Datuk Mohd Hasnol B. Ayub
       Executive Director; Institute for Development Studies (IDS) Sabah

       Professor Dr. Mohd Harun Abdullah
       Vice Chancellor; Universiti Malaysia Sabah

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Dr Haji Abdul Kadir Haji Rosline
       Campus Director; Universiti Teknologi Mara (UiTM)

       Mr. Bonipasius Bianis
                    Deputy President; Kadazandusun Chambers of Commerce and Industry

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Michael Lui Yen Sang
       President; Tionghua Chambers of Commerce and Industry

       Y.Bhg. Datuk Abdul Razak Datuk Hj. Walli
                    Secretary-General; Dewan Perniagaan Bumiputera Sabah
 

The committee held two meetings in 2015, as follows:

 9th Consultative Panel & Focus Group Committee meeting    .................... 31st March 2015
10th Consultative Panel & Focus Group Committee meeting   .................... 23rd September 2015

SEDIA COMMITTEES

The Governance of SEDIA
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Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Johari, chairing 10th Consultative Panel and Focus Group Committee



THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Chief Executive is appointed by the Authority, and has been entrusted with the following responsibilities:
•     The general conduct, administration and management of the functions, activities and day-to-day affairs of           
       the Authority;

•     The performance of such functions and exercise of such duties as delegated by the Authority; and 

•     The carrying out of the decisions of the Authority.

The Chief Executive shall also perform such other duties as the Authority may, from time to time, direct and shall 
act under the general direction of the Authority in discharging his duties. The Chief Executive shall have general 
control of the officers and staff of the Authority.

The Chief Executive reported for duty on 2 March 2009. The appointment of the Chief Executive was ratified 
during the Inaugural Meeting of the Authority on 14 May 2009. The Inaugural Meeting also approved the 2009 
budget for SEDIA, and the organisation structure of the Authority.

The authority to commit any financial obligation or otherwise, solely, partially or directly on the account of the 
Authority lies wholly with the Authority subject to policies, procedures and guidelines approved by the Authority, 
the Sabah State and the Federal Government.

Section 14 (1) of the Enactment provides for the establishment of a fund to be known as the “Sabah Economic 
Development and Investment Authority Fund” to be administered and controlled by the Authority.

Section 15 of the Enactment specifies that the Fund shall be expended for the following purposes:

•     Disbursing funds received from the Government or the Federal Government to the relevant implementing    
      Government Entities for the Sabah Development Corridor;

•     Performing or discharging the functions and duties of the Authority;

•     Paying for the remuneration, allowances or other expenses of members, the Chief Executive, officers and   
      servants of the Authority;

•     Undertakes approved and lawful investments, and acquisitions of shares or interests in companies or        
      property movable or immovable for the purposes of the Enactment; and

•     Paying any other expenses lawfully incurred in the discharge or performances of its functions and duties     
      under this Enactment.

SABAH ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT AUTHORITY FUND
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SEDIA Chairman Datuk Seri Panglima Musa Haji Aman handing over a mock Facilitation Fund cheque to one of the beneficiaries during a 
SEDIA Members of Authority meeting, as witnessed by (right to left) Dato’ Ahmad Husni Hussain, Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Hj. Johari, and 
TERAJU representatives
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The Governance of SEDIA
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Kota Kinabalu City View
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(Left to right) Tan Sri Datuk Seri Panglima Joseph Pairin Kitingan, Datuk Seri Panglima Musa Haji Aman, Datuk Dr.Mohd Yaakub 
Hj Johari, Datuk Peter Pang En Yin, and Dato’ Ahmad Husni Hussain during the 18th Members of Authority meeting.



FUNCTIONS OF SEDIA

The SEDIA Enactment lists the functions of SEDIA as follows:

• To recommend to the Government, or the Federal Government on all projects of potential economic 
growth and opportunities to be included in the Sabah Development Corridor;

• To disburse funds received from the Government or the Federal Government for the Sabah 
Development Corridor to the relevant implementing Government Entities;

• To coordinate the expeditious implementation of all projects in the Sabah Development Corridor by 
performing the functions of a one-stop centre;

• To monitor and report to the Government and the Federal Government the status of all projects in 
the Sabah Development Corridor;

• To promote and market the Sabah Development Corridor as an attractive business and investment 
location;

• To recommend to the Government and the Federal Government incentives for the Sabah 
Development Corridor;

• To recommend to the Government or the Federal Government on policy reforms and other initiatives 
for the Sabah Development Corridor;

• To source funds for the Sabah Development Corridor; and

• To do all things as are expedient, advantageous or necessary for, or incidental, supplemental or 
consequential to the performance of the functions of the Authority and the better carrying out of the 
purposes of the SEDIA enactment.
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Y.A.B. Chief Minister of Sabah addressed Singapore 
Delegation during their visit to Sabah in May 2015

Y.B. Deputy CM of Sabah addressed Czech Republic 
Delegation during their visit to Sabah in October 2015

The VIPs and congregation during the Launching of Bio 
Borneo 2015

SEDIA briefed Czech-Republic Delegations on SDC
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CORPORATE VISION, MISSION AND STRATEGIES

Vision

SEDIA’s corporate vision is to be a responsive, effective, efficient and accountable one-stop authority to 
realise the objectives of the SDC, in active partnerships with key stakeholders.

• To provide strategic direction, roadmap, planning integration, implementation coordination, 
monitoring and evaluation on the implementation of the SDC;

• To promote the SDC as a preferred investment destination for business, culture and nature;

• To ensure that the SDC initiatives reach the target groups, especially the poor and disadvantaged, 
alleviate regional imbalance, enhance the quality of life, and promote economic growth and 
sustainable development;

• To facilitate and serve as a solution provider and partner to realise the objectives of the SDC; and

• To enhance stakeholders’ value propositions, confidence and acceptance through optimum 
engagement, information dissemination and accountability.

Mission

Strategies

• Attract investments and business initiatives in targeted areas to unlock the SDC’s regional value 
creation potential through roadshows and trade fairs, and by offering business support to fast-track 
approvals and customised incentives;

• Develop innovative business models and pioneering initiatives to drive long-term, sustainable value 
creation for the SDC, especially in innovative and strategic industries such as in ICT, biotech and 
nanotechnology;

• Create strategic development areas comprising green field clusters in tourism, agriculture and 
manufacturing driven by creativity, knowledge convergence and eco-sensitive lifestyle;

• Enhance capacity building for SMEs, the poor and disadvantaged groups to benefit from the SDC 
initiatives;

• Strengthen growth centres, as well as sub-regional and inter-sectoral linkages to provide optimum 
cluster synergy, enhancing supply chain competitiveness and transmitting stronger development 
impulses to the lagging areas;

• Promote active tripartite partnership involving the government, the private sector and the civil society 
to eradicate poverty, enhance the quality of life, promote economic growth, and ensuring balanced, 
equitable and sustainable development; and

• Respond rapidly to opportunities and challenges to support the SDC initiatives.

The corporate strategies shall be carried out by SEDIA through the various committees, operating 
divisions and departments within SEDIA. In view of the fact that the SEDIA committees are primarily 
decision-making body to assist SEDIA, the main day-to-day operations shall be principally carried out 
by the various operating divisions and departments under the overall supervision of the Chief Executive.
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DIVISIONS AND DEPARTMENTS OF SEDIA

SEDIA CEO’S Office 

The function of the CEO’s office is generally to assist the Chief Executive in coordinating the execution 
of the following tasks:

• Strategic planning, and performance and risk assessment

• Budget allocation and internal audit

• Government liaising, protocol, and media relations

• Administration, secretarial and legal matters involving the Members of Authority and the   
 management committee

These functions are translated into the responsibilities of coordinating the Chief Executive’s engagements, 
appointments and meetings; monitoring the execution of decisions by the Members of Authority, Chief 
Executive and management; coordinating internal and external communication of the Chief Executive; 
and compiling relevant information pertaining to project development, investment performance and 
financial performance.

The staffs of the CEO’s office perform tasks aligned with the objectives of ensuring a seamless decision-
making process within SEDIA, helping to build up the SEDIA corporate image and relations, keeping 
track of SEDIA’s overall performance, and advising on legal and procedural compliance.
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SEDIA Chairman Y.A.B. Datuk Seri Panglima Musa Haji Aman (centre), chairing a SEDIA Members of Authority meeting



In furtherance of the objectives and effective performance of the functions of SEDIA, the Chief Executive 
shall be assisted in executing his responsibilities and duties by officers and servants of the Authority. 
Towards this end, SEDIA has been organised along four divisions and three departments. The four 
divisions are as follow:

Development Planning, Coordination and Evaluation Division (DPCED):

• To identify and recommend strategic development projects and economic clusters with growth 
potential;

• To identify strategic soft and hard infrastructure to support the economic clusters identified;

• To coordinate the integration of the various sectoral development plans into a coherent socio-
economic and physical development planning framework;

• To assess the socio-economic, environmental and regional impacts of these projects; and

• To evaluate the SDC milestones in term of key performance indicators.
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A key function of the Development Planning, Coordination and Evaluation Division is to coordinate human capital development 
initiatives in the SDC
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Jointly organised by PEMANDU and SEDIA, the one-day industry workshop was held on June 8, 2015 
to address issues, challenges and recommendations that had been earlier highlighted during a three-
day “Sabah Human Capital Development Workshop” in November 2012 as well as a TVET collaboration 
meeting held by SEDIA in February 2015, during which it was proposed that SEDIA collaborate with IDS 
and Politeknik Malaysia to jointly organise the workshop. This workshop was held to identify the role of 
Sabah TVET institutions in contributing towards human capital development planning in meeting manpower 
requirements of the six economic sectors in the SDC, with a focus on the engagement with industry players.

The workshop had been organised to fulfil the objectives of providing a platform for industry players and 
TVET institutions to discuss and develop programmes/ action plans to effectively address human capital 
development issues and challenges, provide an avenue for gathering more precise manpower demand 
and supply data, and provide updated information on government human capital development initiatives, 
programmes and incentives to industry players.

Six breakout groups gathered and held discussions, each based on the following sectors: Agriculture, 
Tourism, Oil & Gas, Manufacturing & Logistic, Palm Oil and Education. The discussions were structured 
and led to the development and formulation of programmes and action plans to be implemented jointly by 
the TVET institutions and industry players, meant to bridge the gap between the supply and demand of the 
talent pool.

In enhancing collaborative ties between TVET institutions and industry players, the targeted outcomes were to 
minimise the gap between supply and demand of talent, establish MoUs between the parties for collaboration 
on human capital development programmes, provide updates for a database on effective human capital 
development planning, and raise awareness on government initiatives for industry players.
 

Featured activity – TVET collaboration in SDC Human Capital Development workshop

Enhancing collaborative ties with TVET institutions is one of several efforts by SEDIA to increase human capital development in 
the SDC

Participating goverment agencies, institutions and stakeholders taking part in workshop discussion



Marketing and Corporate Communications Division (MCCD):

• To promote and market SDC as an attractive business and investment location;

• To undertake market intelligence;

• To identify potential investors;

• To compile and disseminate information regarding SDC’s programmes and projects as well as 
SEDIA’s activities to stakeholders;

• To obtain information and feedback regarding the response and outcome of SDC programmes and 
projects; and

• To support CSR activities and engagement with stakeholders.
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Featured activity – Bio Borneo 2015

The Bio Borneo 2015 Conference and Exhibition was co-organised by SEDIA, the Ministry of Science, 
Technology, and Innovation (MOSTI), and Malaysian Biotechnology Corporation (BiotechCorp), with support 
from the Sabah Biodiversity Centre (SaBC). The event was held from 21 to 20 April 2015.

Themed “Bio-based technologies for wealth creation through the Bioeconomy”, the two-day event was 
launched by the Chief Minister of Sabah Datuk Seri Panglima Musa Hj Aman, represented by the Deputy 
Chief Minister cum Minister of Agriculture and Food Industry Datuk Seri Panglima Haji Yahya Hussin. Also 
present were MOSTI Minister Datuk Dr. Ewon Ebin, MOSTI Deputy Minister Datuk Dr. Abu Bakar Diah, 
SEDIA Chief Executive Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Haji Johari, BiotechCorp CEO Dato’ Dr. Mohd Nazlee Kamal, 
SaBC Director Dr. Abdul Fatah Amir, and Deputy State Secretary Datuk Pounis @ Joseph Yuntavid.

In conjunction with the opening ceremony, four strategic collaborations were announced and witnessed by 
the Deputy Chief Minister of Sabah, namely;

• Memorandum of Agreement between SEDIA and Universiti Malaysia Sabah (UMS)
SEDIA and UMS intend to cooperate in carrying out an incubator aquaculture centre project, which is meant 
to increase entrepreneurs in the field of marine aquaculture.

Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority

SME Week 2015 Seminar and knowledge 
sharing

Czech-Malaysia (Sabah) Business Forum TVET Career Carnival Sabah 2015

Networking session during Czech-Republic Delegation 



SEDIA and UMS Exchange MoU

                                        Annual Report 2015   |   40  

•           Memorandum of Understanding between SEDIA and Universiti Malaysia Pahang (UMP)
The partnership will allow SEDIA and UMP to collaborate in the fields of knowledge transfer, dairy and food 
processing, bio-related research, and entrepreneur incubation.

•           Memorandum of Understanding between Our Energy Group and Sabah Electricity Sdn Bhd (SESB)
This exchange of MoU sees the parties enter into a purchase agreement for the sale of 2MW of biogas for 
the generation of electricity at a power plant in Telupid under the Feed-in-Tariff initiative promoted by the 
government via the Sustainable Energy Development Authority (SEDA). The estimated investment for this 
project is USD3 million.

•           Letter of intent to collaborate between SaBC and Palm-UK
The proposed project is in organic bioactive fertiliser. This collaboration is meant to create a partnership 
between the parties to develop, support, and optimise the development of natural resources by leveraging 
Sabah’s geographical location, natural resources, cultural heritage and biodiversity for balanced growth. The 
estimated investment for this project is USD43 million through 10 years.

The two-day event received more than 250 registered participants for the conference, and showcased over 
fifty exhibition booths which were open to the general public throughout the event. Several papers from 
the conference brought attention to the growing maturity of bio-based activities in Malaysia particularly 
in Sabah, such as the cultivation and processing technology involved in algae downstream products, 
crop protection technologies, neutraceutical development, palm oil downstream activities, and high yield 
planting methods, to name a few. The conference material also brought forward updates in the National 
and State biotechnology agenda, through efforts in the Sabah Development Corridor and the Bioeconomy 
Transformation Programme.

In the exhibition hall, booth holders display a wide range of products and services, ranging from consumer 
products such as honey-based food items, cosmetics, and unique herbal teas, to industry-level offerings 
that include bio-fertiliser, cellular-based supplements, and seedlings. Booth presence also consisted of 
conservation efforts, bio-safety awareness, and others.

Our Energy and SESB Exchange MoU SABC and Palm-UK Exchange LOI

Following the launching ceremony of Bio Borneo 2015, Deputy Chief Minister cum Minister of Agriculture and Food Industry Datuk 
Seri Panglima Haji Yahya Hussin (centre) visited the booths in the exhibition hall
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Investment and Business Development Division (IBDD)

• To provide one-stop services to business enterprises and SMEs/SMIs;

• To fast-track priority and strategic industries;

• To provide business-matching assistance;

• To provide investment advisory services;

• To facilitate in obtaining planning approval, customising incentive packages, and securing licenses 
and permits; and

• To recommend policy reforms, incentives or other initiatives to attract investments.
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Entrepreneur development and advisory services comprises one of the core functions of the Investment and Business 
Development Division
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Featured activity – SDC Hot Desk Programme

The SDC Hot Desk Programme is a platform for start-ups or entrepreneurs to prepare their business plans 
and business pitching skills with assistance from SEDIA. From September 2015 until 31st December 2015, 
the programme had served 231 participants.

The Hot Desk Programme is a continuous effort by the Investment and Business Development Division 
of SEDIA and has been conducted weekly, on the first and third week of the month for business plan 
development, and every second and fourth week for business pitching skills enhancement. In addition, 
brainstorming sessions will be held with other start-ups and entrepreneurs to develop their ideas to viable 
business propositions.

The Hot Desk Programme was created to address the requirements of start-ups and entrepreneurs entering 
the incubation programme at SAIP, Kimanis. This programme includes business plans preparation and 
business pitching skills trainning. The Hot Desk programme is based on one-to-one or classroom coaching 
approach, to explain essential elements of a business plan that need to be prepared to secure funding. The 
business plan needs to be seen bankable and viable by financial institutions.
 
Facilities such as the following are provided through the Hot Desk Programme:

•  Co-working space – chairs, tables, presentation facilities, and refreshments

•  Internet connection for information gathering purposes

•  Business-library where business concept catalogues, business-related journals, articles and books, as
   well as newspapers are included.

•  Business advisory centre where start-ups can find opportunities that are offered by other agencies in 
   engaging their business idea to become a reality

Corporate Profile

Aspiring entrepreneurs present their business ideas to a dedicated panel before being submitted into the 1BizLink Incubator Programme



Knowledge and Technology Management Division (KTMD)

• To establish and manage the SDC databank;

• To monitor and support knowledge creation activities;

• To disseminate and promote new technology applications and scientific knowledge;

• To facilitate science-industry linkages;

• To promote innovation and commercialisation of R&D; and

• To promote new growth sectors driven by the convergence of technology.
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Honeycomb sample showcase by Mr. Ahmad Ramzi of Floral Bee 
Hive Enterprise Sdn Bhd during 1Agro-SAIP training programme on 
‘Commercial Honey Farming’ on 16 June 2015

Demonstration of Virgin Coconut Oil Processing by Ms. Yvonne M. 
Laurence of KTMD, SEDIA during 1Agro-SAIP training programme on 
‘VCO Processing and Application Technology’ on 26 August 2015

Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority

Mr. Vincent Gahit of FAMA Sabah giving a talk during the 1 Agro-
SAIP training programme on ‘Packaging and Labelling for Food and 
Agriculture Products’

Ms. Agni Ali of MARDI Sabah giving talk during the 1Agro-SAIP training 
programme on ‘Introduction and Opportunities in Controlled Environment 
Farming (CEF)’



Featured activity – 1Agro-SAIP Training Programme

The highly lucrative agri-processing and packaging sector has great potential to add value to the state’s 
agriculture and agro-based industry. As the industry is currently fragmented, with downstream activities for 
processing of agri-food and Specialty Natural Products (SNPs) not sufficient to optimise the value of these 
resources, the Sabah Agro-Industrial Precinct (SAIP) project in Kimanis is dedicated for agro-processing 
and will address these issues. Driven by agri-biotechnology and innovation, SAIP will enhance the capacity 
and capability of local SMEs in the downstream processing of agro-food and SNPs by locating them in a 
centralised agro-industrial park.

The establishment and implementation of the 1Agro-SAIP Training Programme is aimed at empowering 
technopreneurs in the agri-based industry, by giving the necessary exposure and transfer of knowledge, 
especially on the processing of agri-food and SNPs. Designed to be a part of the SAIP pre-incubation 
initiative, the programme will screen and select potential agro-technopreneurs, preparing them to operate 
under a conducive incubator business environment.

This program targets Sabahans aged between 18 and 60 years, especially school leavers, graduates and 
members of the public who are interested in becoming local entrepreneurs in agro-businesses. Experienced 
speakers and industry experts in various sectors, including pharma-herbs, Controlled Environment Farming 
(CEF), post-harvest handling technology, agro-organic and agro-food industries, business and marketing 
through E-Commence, and bio-science and biotechnology had been invited to come and share their 
experience and expertise with participants.

Since the programme was introduced in 2012, the Knowledge and Technology Management Division has 
successfully conducted 24 courses under the 1Agro-SAIP Training Programme. The programme thus far has 
benefited around 1,384 participants. From surveys conducted among the participants, the majority of the 
participants welcomed the implementation of the 1Agro-SAIP Training programme and were satisfied with 
the content of the modules, presentations and course implementation.

The 1Agro-SAIP courses held during 2015 are as listed below:

Date       Course
16 June 2015  Commercial honey farming  
26 August 2015          Virgin Coconut Oil (VCO) processing and application technology
1 December 2015  Packaging and labelling for food and agriculture products
2 December 2015           Introduction and opportunities in Controlled Environment Farming (CEF)

Corporate Profile
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The three supporting departments are as follows:

Project Management Department (PMD)

• To audit and compile reports on the status of SDC projects;

• To coordinate and monitor the physical implementation of all SDC projects;

• To determine tender and procurement strategy;

• To liaise with project consultants;

• To provide technical advice; and

• To recommend project closure and payment.
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Featured activity – Performance Audit of Completed SDC projects

Since the launch of the Sabah Development Corridor in 2009, various SDC projects had been implemented with 
the objective of accelerating the growth of Sabah’s economy and ensuring more equitable wealth distribution 
among the people of the state. Most of these projects are located at rural areas, in line with one of the objectives 
of SEDIA to ensure that social development and sustainable development are kept as priorities whilst driving 
economic growth in the Sabah Development Corridor. An important responsibility of SEDIA is ensuring that the 
projects implemented thus far are of benefit to the people of Sabah. In 2015, SEDIA had conducted assessments 
on several completed projects, to gauge the contribution of SDC projects towards the local communities.

Mini Estet Sejahtera (MESEJ) Programme Under the Ministry of Rural Development Sabah

The Ministry of Rural Development Sabah has initiated the MESEJ programme to alleviate the standard of 
living of the state’s rural population. The main objective of MESEJ is to increase the income of the hard-core 
poor in a sustainable manner as well as attaining higher quality of life. The development of MESEJ includes 
development of at least 100 hectares of government land to cater for three types of economic activity chosen 
for the project; rubber, oil palm or aquaculture. Eligible participants and their respective families received their 
income by working directly on the farm through maintenance fees and also dividend from the farm’s operational 
profit. On 3rd August 2015, SEDIA conducted outcome assessment at MESEJ Kg. Sg. Laba, Pulau Sebatik, 
Tawau, where the oil palm plantation is the core economic activity that employs 33 participants. A two kilometre 
length access road to the project site is directly funded through SDC. The SDC access road project completed 
has been fully utilised by the participants.

The First Phase of the SDC saw the provision of basic infrastructure, such as improved road networks in rural areas

Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority
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Road Access to Rural Areas

In an effort to increase economic activity in rural areas, particularly in agriculture sector, a total of 21 rural 
roads have been completed under SDC. In 2015, 12 of these roads were visited by the team from SEDIA for 
performance audit. The roads were found to expedite the transport of agriculture products, as well as helping 
the rural communities to have greater and more cost effective access to wider range of facilities that in the 
past were difficult to get by. 

 

SDC Projects Impact and Outcome assessment at Tamparuli, Tuaran

Jalan Kg. Bokok Ketiau - Kg. Ramayah, 
Penampang

Jalan ke Stesen Pembiakan Ternakan, Tawau Part of 21 Agriculture roads projects 
under SDC

SDC Projects Impact and Outcome assessment at Sebatik, Tawau
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Accounting and Finance Department (AFD)

• To prepare corporate/business plans for SEDIA;

• To plan and prepare annual budgets for the SDC;

• To disburse payment and SDC allocations to implementing agencies;

• To maintain proper accounting and procurement record;

• To prepare feasibility studies and financial modelling for SDC projects;

• To explore potential in value creations; and

• To source funding for SDC projects.

AFD staff had underwent training on the implementation of GST measures

AFD staff ensure that claims are processed in a fast and efficient manner

Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority
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Administration and Corporate Services Department (ACSD)

•     To provide in-house administrative and secretarial support;

•     To assist in record-keeping and documentation;

•     To maintain inventories of office supplies and assets;

•     To manage human resources, outsourcing activities and risk exposure; and

•     To provide general corporate services.

Corporate Profile

In-house administrative and secretarial support is provided, ensuring that SEDIA continues to function at peak efficiency

A core function of the Administration and Corporate Services Department is to ensure SEDIA staff undergo training regularly to 
enhance their skills
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KEY EVENTS TIMELINE
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HIGHLIGHTS OF SEDIA ACTIVITIES

Briefing the Minister of Special Tasks on SDC Planning for the Eleventh Malaysia Plan

Presented by SEDIA Vice President Dr. Chong Vun Leong, SEDIA had held a briefing on January 22, 2015 at 
the office of the State Economic Planning Unit for Datuk Teo Chee Kang, Minister of Special Tasks in the Chief 
Minister’s Department. The briefing was presented following the conclusion of a lab on the preparation for the 
Eleventh Malaysia Plan (11MP).

The briefing had covered the list of proposed SDC projects under the upcoming economic development plan for 
Malaysia, along with the SDC strategy paper outlining the focus for the SDC programme and its implementing 
agency SEDIA starting next year onwards. Concluding the briefing, Datuk Teo Chee Kang had expressed his 
confidence in the progress of the SDC in its preparation for the SDC future strategy in conjunction with the 
upcoming Eleventh Malaysia Plan.

The preparation of the 11MP was initiated on 29 October 2013 by the Chief Secretary to the Federal Government. 
The document was supposed to be tabled in Parliament in June 2015. The development plan sought to identify 
the possible challenges during the coming five-year periods and provide short- and medium-term policy, 
strategies and action plans.

SEDIA Vice President Dr. Chong Vun Leong briefing Datuk Teo Chee Kang, Minister of Special Tasks in the Chief Minister’s 
Department on SDC, for the Eleventh Malaysia Plan
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Courtesy Visit by Vietnam Ambassador to Malaysia

The Ambassador of Vietnam in Malaysia His Excellency Pham Cao Phong expressed his enthusiasm in encouraging 
trade ties between Vietnam and Sabah through the SDC, during a courtesy call to SEDIA on January 27, 2015. His 
Excellency exchanged ideas with SEDIA Chief Executive Datuk Dr Mohd Yaakub Hj Johari, related to investment 
incentives made available in the Key Focus Areas within Sabah. The Ambassador said that the purpose for his visit 
to SEDIA was to “explore opportunities for collaborations, particularly between Sabah and Vietnam”. His Excellency 
noted the high volume of tourists into Malaysia, and that connectivity should be improved through ASEAN efforts 
to set a new level for improved development engagement between the two nations. Among the ideas put forward 
was the consideration for direct flights between Sabah and Vietnam to spur linkages between the economies and 
industries, for example in tourism where both areas could complement each other’s strengths.
 

SEDIA Chief Executive Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Johari had received a courtesy call by Vietnam Ambassador H.E. Pham Cao 
Phong

Corporate Profile
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Southern Cross University explores education opportunities in the SDC

On April 28, 2015 SEDIA Chief Executive Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Johari received a courtesy visit by a 
representative from Southern Cross University (SCU) at Wisma SEDIA. This was later followed up by a site visit 
to the Sabah Agro-Industrial Precinct (SAIP) in Kimanis. During the site visit to SAIP, Professor Mackenzie was 
given a tour of the facilities, and briefed on the current development of the project and the various initiatives and 
programme implemented.

The visiting representative from SCU, Deputy Vice Chancellor Professor Geraldine Mackenzie, was earlier 
given a briefing on the SDC, its initiatives and the opportunities that await prospective investors, and also a 
presentation on the SAIP project. The presentations were followed by a dialogue on potential opportunities in 
connecting ties between SEDIA and SCU, in terms of research, development and investment opportunities.

A delegation from SEDIA had previously paid a courtesy visit to Southern Cross University, to discuss on possible 
entry points for collaborative efforts within the SDC. During the brief visit to the SCU campus in Australia, the 
delegation had met with Pro Vice Chancellors Chris Patton and Professor Neal Ryan, and were then introduced 
to the SCU Heads of School, identifying areas where there could be potential for prospective links between 
the two organisations, such as transfers of knowledge, research co-development and even a branch campus 
in Sabah. The meetings with these school and faculty representatives allowed the SEDIA group to witness 
first-hand the activities undertaken by a learning institute sharing similar interests in relevant fields such as 
agriculture, biotechnology, education, environmental management, and tourism.
 

SCU Deputy Vice Chancellor Professor Geraldine Mackenzie receiving a momento from 
SEDIA Chief Executive Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub, with (left to right) SEDIA Deputy Vice 
President Jesi Majungki and Vice President Mary Sintoh in attendance

SCU Deputy Vice Chancellor Professor Geraldine Mackenzie visited facilities in the Sabah Agro-Industrial Precinct

Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority
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British Council keen to see UK engagement in the SDC

The British Council had on May 9, 2015 paid a courtesy call on SEDIA. Welcomed by SEDIA Deputy Vice President 
Madam Jesi Majungki, the visiting representatives established a dialogue, in order to identify potential opportunities 
for establishing ties through the SDC. The British Council representatives, Director of English Language Services 
Katie Butler, and Director of English for Education Systems Keith O’Hare, were eager to convey their commitment 
to increase activity in Sabah, and having read the SEDIA Annual Report prior to the meeting, had identified areas 
of interest such as in education and the services sector.

The British Council is the United Kingdom’s international organisation for cultural relations, creating international 
opportunities between the people of the UK and other countries, and fostering cultural relations with nations 
worldwide. In terms of outreach and impact, it is among the world’s leading cultural relations organisations. 
Cultural relations being a component of international relations focuses on developing people-to-people links and 
complements government-to-people and government-to-government contact. British Council uses English, Arts, 
and Education and Society – the best of the UK’s great cultural assets – to bring people together and to attract 
partners to working with the UK. The British Council has over 7,000 staff working in 191 offices in 110 countries 
and territories.

The British Council’s major efforts in Sabah at the time included posting over 50 trainers throughout the state, 
working with primary schools to mentor their teachers in teaching the English language. These trainers are each 
handling a cluster of five schools, meeting with two teachers per school on a weekly basis. This initiative, could be 
expanded to cover English language training for tourism sector-focused skilled workers, as the tourism sector is 
considered the state’s low hanging fruit which could yield the fastest results from such an activity.

In addition to identifying key areas of collaboration in the SDC, the British Council delegation were keen to listen 
on the human capital development initiatives established through the SDC thus far, as well as tourism sector 
programmes. The National Talent Enhancement Programme (NTEP) were among the programme covered during 
the discussion. The NTEP is a means to accelerate the development of graduates and a skilled professional 
workforce, through partnership and collaboration with the private sector.
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SEDIA Deputy Vice President Jesi Majungki received the visiting delegation from the British Council represented by Director of 
English Language Services Katie Butler, and Director of English for Education Systems Keith O’Hare
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The trade and investment mission to Brussels, Belgium and Paris, France on May 10-13, 2015 was led by 
Minister of International Trade and Industry Dato’ Sri Mustapa Mohamed, with the objectives of attracting both 
Belgian and French investors to invest in Malaysia as well as to entice multinational corporations (MNCs) to 
relocate their Asia regional offices to Kuala Lumpur (a mandate by Invest KL). The mission was organised by 
the Malaysian Investment and Development Authority (MIDA), led by CEO Dato’ Azman Mahmud, and Malaysia 
External Trade Development Corporation (MATRADE).

Members of the Malaysian delegation comprised of representatives from both Federal and State government 
agencies. Apart from SEDIA, other investment promotion agencies in attendance include Perbadanan Kemajuan 
Negeri Melaka (PKNM), Kulim Technology Park Corporation (KHTP), Johor State Investment Centre (JSIC), 
Cyberview Sdn Bhd, Johor State Economic Planning Unit, Johor Corporation, Tanjung Langsat Port Sdn Bhd, 
and Invest KL.

Roundtable meeting in Brussels, Belgium

In Brussels, a roundtable session on ‘Doing Business in Malaysia’ was held on May 11, 2015 with 25 Belgian 
representatives comprising both captains of industries and government officials, chaired by Dato’ Sri Mustapa 
Mohamed. The Belgian representatives were led by Wallonia Trade and Investment Agency (AWEX), whose 
CEO Pascale Delcomminette detailed in her opening remarks the close working relationship between AWEX 
with MIDA and MATRADE. The CEO of a Belgian SME with an existing presence in Malaysia was also present 
to share the positive experience of conducting business in Malaysia, as well as how receptive and supportive 
the Malaysian government had been.

Trade and Investment mission to Brussels, Belgium and Paris, France

SEDIA was represented during the Trade and Investment Mission to Paris by SEDIA Chief Executive Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Hj. Johari, 
SEDIA Vice President Mary Sintoh, and Ms Ynez Teo, Senior Executive.

Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority
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Seminar in Paris, France

For the Paris segment of the mission, a seminar entitled ‘Business Opportunities in Malaysia’ was held on May 
12, 2015, attended by 70 French representatives. The seminar featured a local guest speaker Jean Claude Block, 
Non-Executive Director of Lafarge Malaysia Berhad, to share on the company’s experience in Malaysia and the 
types of businesses that they were involved which had yielded a positive return in investment.

SEDIA Chief Executive Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Hj. Johari had the opportunity to address the seminar participants, 
informing them of the already present French companies in Sabah, such as Vinci Construction that is involved in 
green building projects with an investment value of around 130 million Euros. Datuk Dr. Yaakub also highlighted 
on the green field areas offered to new ventures through the SDC involving biotechnology via collaborations with 
Biotechnology Corporation Malaysia, of whom SEDIA works closely with.

The seminar was supplemented with individual business meetings with French companies, of which several were 
keen to meet with SEDIA representatives to discuss opportunities in Sabah, particularly on biotechnology.
 

Group photo with SEDIA’s Datuk Dr. Mohd. Yaakub Hj. Johari 
and Madam Mary Sintoh with a group from Hai Soon Properties

SEDIA team responding to potential investor queries during the 
business matching session in Stuttgart, Germany.
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OLMIX group obtaining further information from Madam Mary 
Sintoh and Ms Ynez Teo of SEDIA

SEDIA participated at the seminar on Trade and Investment 
Opportunities in Malaysia at Stuttgart, Germany.

Trade and Investment mission to Milan, Italy and Stuttgart, Germany

SEDIA participated in the Investment Opportunities in Malaysia seminar organized by MIDA on September 30, 
2015 in conjunction with Expo Milano 2015 in Italy, as well as a MIDA trade and investment mission to Stuttgart, 
Germany during Oct 1-2, 2015. This promotion exercise was fruitful in introducing Sabah Development Corridor 
(SDC) as a destination of choice for business, culture and nature to investors at Milan and Stuttgart. The SEDIA 
delegation led by Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub had met potential foreign investors during the business matching 
sessions, all keen to know more about the business opportunities that Sabah has to offer. During this mission, 
investors met were mostly from the manufacturing, education and agriculture sectors. The mission provides a 
good lead to promote key areas such as the Sandakan Education Hub (SEH), Palm Oil Industrial Clusters (POICs) 
in Lahad Datu and Sandakan, the Kota Kinabalu Industrial Park (KKIP) and Sabah Agro Industrial Precinct (SAIP), 
to name a few.



SEDIA Chief Executive Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Johari had on September 2, 2015 given a briefing on SDC 
initiatives to Deputy Chief Minister cum Minister of Industrial Development, Y.B. Datuk Raymond Tan Shu 
Kiah, during the Minister’s visit to Wisma SEDIA. The minister and his delegation were also briefed by SEDIA 
Vice President Dr. Chong Vun Leong on current programmes and development under the initiative, and the 
preparations made for the upcoming Eleventh Malaysia Plan (11MP) that begins in 2016.

Key areas of discussion during the meeting included further efforts to increase the contribution by the 
manufacturing industry to the state economy, development of logistics infrastructure, streamlining development 
initiatives and efforts by both parties, and collaboration in expanding the presence of local entrepreneurs. During 
the discussion, Y.B. Datuk Raymond commented, “I always talk about deliverables, what I can deliver; from 
today’s discussion I see that we can further align your efforts (SEDIA’s initiatives under the SDC) with those of 
my ministry in order to better achieve our shared goals”.

On the development of the SDC, Datuk Yaakub informed the delegation that at the meeting of the Members of 
SEDIA earlier in August, Chief Minister Datuk Seri Panglima Musa Aman had noted that during the Tenth Malaysia 
Plan (10MP), the SDC had accounted for RM96.7 billion of committed investment, of which RM44.5 billion had 
been realised. Overall, the regional economic corridors had attracted RM307 billion committed investments 
during the 10MP, of which RM174 billion was realised. Also during this period, the Federal government had 
channelled RM935.2 million in allocations to SEDIA, of which 80 percent has been spent.
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Courtesy Visit by State Minister of Industrial Development Datuk Raymond Tan

State Minister of Industrial Development Datuk Raymond Tan Shu Kiah had encouraged to strengthen working relations between his 
ministry and SEDIA, during his courtesy visit to SEDIA together with representatives from POIC Lahad Datu, Department of Industrial 
Development and Research and SEDCO
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Second Courtesy Visit from the Institute of Strategic and International Studies

On September 2, 2015 SEDIA welcomed a courtesy visit from the Institute of Strategic and International Studies 
Malaysia (ISIS). The visiting team comprised of Chairman of the Institute Tan Sri Rastam Mohd Isa, and Director in 
charge of Technology, Innovation, Environment and Sustainability (TIES) Dr. Hezri Adnan.

Meeting with SEDIA Chief Executive Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Hj Johari, the visiting delegation explored ideas on 
enhancing national integration, and sustainability. Speaking on sustainability, Tan Sri Rastam had said that, “Sabah 
is regarded to be advanced when it comes to nature conservation, and is ideal as a national model” and that 
collaboration could “bring more visibility to the initiatives in Sabah, even for lesser known conservation efforts”. In 
speaking about green initiatives, the discussion also covered innovation through green technologies.

In discussing national integration, the delegation concurred that there is recognition, in particular on the need to 
enhancing the participation of Sabahans in decision making at the national level, especially in terms of allocation of 
development funds in order to reflect shared priorities. To this, Datuk Dr. Yaakub said that there is a need to review 
the various measures designed to enhance national integration that had been recommended and implemented in 
the past, particularly recommendations from conferences by ISIS and the Institute for Development Studies, Sabah 
(IDS).

The meeting also covered Malaysia’s current chairmanship of ASEAN, and the ASEAN Economic Community 
(AEC). The AEC has created an ideal environment for local companies to increase sales, open operations outside 
their domestic market and enable sourcing on a region-wide basis, thus Malaysia and specifically Sabah could 
stand to benefit from increased participation in ASEAN initiatives.

The Institute had previously sent a delegation on a courtesy visit to SEDIA in June 2014, along with three members 
of the United States Congress. As part of its Malaysia-United States Ties (MUST) Visit Programme, ISIS had 
arranged for meetings and discussions between US Congress delegates with prominent personalities and relevant 
leaders from the public and private sectors.

SEDIA had received a second visit by the Institute of Strategic and International Studies Malaysia, led by Chairman 
Tan Sri Rastam Mohd Isa

Corporate Profile
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Technical and Vocational Training and Education (TVET) Career Carnival

The TVET Career Carnival was a collaborative effort between SEDIA, the Ministry of Higher Education and 
Politeknik Malaysia, serving to provide graduates with a medium for seeking jobs that match their qualifications. The 
Carnival, officiated by Deputy Higher Education Minister Datuk Mary Yap, also addresses the needs of industries 
by generating employment, as well as shares information about the current job market. The Deputy Minister, during 
her opening remarks, revealed that currently 96 percent of vocational skills graduates had managed to obtain 
employment in accordance to their qualifications, and that more youth have begun to choose TVET programmes 
as their tertiary education path. Following the conclusion of the event, 31 percent of jobseekers were successful in 
finding recruitment, with another 59 percent awaiting interview results.

TVET providers seek to improve the skills of human capital to meet the demands of industry and increase the 
opportunities for career advancement, by exposing students to scenarios within the working environments. Smart 
collaboration with industry partners and related human capital development agencies aids in ensuring that TVET 
graduates find employment immediately following graduation. 

The objectives of the TVET Career Carnival are as follows:

•     Collaboration with Sabah TVET institutions and industry to provide job opportunities
•     Providing information for students and industry
•     Matching the students and industry 
•     Strengthening the collaboration between Sabah TVET providers and SEDIA in human capital development

SEDIA Chief Executive Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Johari presented 
a talk during the TVET Career Carnival

Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Hj. Johari accepting the appointment 
as one of Kota Kinabalu Polytechnic Faculty CEO from Datuk 
Mary Yap, Deputy Minister for Higher Education during the TVET 
launching ceremony

SEDIA representative providing information to booth visitors Datuk Mary Yap, Deputy Minister for Higher Education visiting 
SEDIA booth
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FAME Programme

On October 16, 2015 SEDIA participated in the Featured Admirable Marvellous Employment (FAME) Programme, 
organised by TalentCorp. The FAME programme features informal engagement sessions which cover a wide 
range of general topics and is represented by prominent industry leaders from a multitude of backgrounds, 
giving encouragement and awareness to students, graduates and young professionals alike on matters related 
to employability. The workshop was designed to allow university graduates from Universiti Malaysia Sabah 
to familiarise themselves on general industry requirements, enabling them to have a better understanding on 
employability and the importance of acquiring soft skills when establishing careers.
 

On November 4, 2015 a team from SEDIA led by Chief Executive Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Hj. Johari visited 
the SIRIM Glass and Foundry Technology Centre in KKIP, as part of a proposed collaboration to establish a 
satellite incubation programme under the Sabah Development Corridor. The team was briefed by Director of SIRIM 
Sabah Haji Khairan Untoh, while visiting SIRIM’s existing pilot scale facilities. SIRIM is known for providing training 
services and technology expertise in the development of the cosmetics product industry in Sabah. Its pilot 
scale cosmetic plant having been GMP-licensed has a 160 kilogramme capacity for producing cosmetics and 
toiletry products.  One of the facilities to be provided, in line with the incubation activity in SAIP, is the product 
development for cosmetics and toiletries based on selected herbs. The working visit to SIRIM was able to enhance 
the SEDIA team’s knowledge on future planning for SAIP product development facilities.

Visit to SIRIM Sabah (Pilot-scale Cosmetics Development)

SEDIA Assistant Vice President Janet Lee Oi Chin represented SEDIA during one of TalentCorp’s FAME programmes

SIRIM’s Pilot-Scale Cosmetic Plant 
(Mixer 100kg in)

Samples of cosmetic products from 
the facility

Group photo with Tuan Haji Khairan Untoh, Director of 
SIRIM Sabah with SEDIA representatives
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Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) between SEDIA and 
Universiti Malaysia Pahang (UMP)

On November 29, 2015, a team from SEDIA, led by Chief Executive Datuk Dr Mohd Yaakub Hj Johari, attended 
the UMP University-Industries Autonomy and Aspirations award ceremony in Pekan, Pahang. A Memorandum 
of Understanding (MoU) between SEDIA and Universiti Malaysia Pahang (UMP) was exchanged in conjunction 
with the event. The MoU had been signed by Datuk Dr Mohd Yaakub and UMS Vice Chancellor Prof Dato’ 
Daing Mohd Nasir Bin Daing, in the presence of UMP Deputy Vice Chancellor Prof Dr. Mashitah Binti Mohd 
Yusoff and SEDIA Vice President Puan Mary Sintoh, during the Bio-Borneo 2015 event held on April, 20th - 21st 
2015 in Kota Kinabalu, Sabah. The partnership will allow collaboration between SEDIA and UMP in the fields 
of knowledge transfer, dairy and food processing, bio-related research, and entrepreneur incubation under the 
SDC. 

During the visit to UMP, Pahang, the SEDIA delegation had also visited the laboratories and food processing 
facilities in the UMP Gambang campus.

National Talent Enhancement (NTEP) Soft Skill Training

Through the Performance Management and Delivery Unit (PEMANDU) under the Prime Minister’s Office, SEDIA 
had been tasked as the implementing agency for the National Talent Enhancement Programme (NTEP) in Sabah. 
The NTEP is a 12-month internship programme under Human Capital Development in the Economic Transformation 
Programme (ETP), with the objective of accelerating the development of graduates and a skilled professional 
workforce, through partnership and collaboration with the private sector. The aim for the training is to build a talent 
pool of skilled workforce via industry relevant skills training and on-the-job practical exposure. In 2015, SEDIA 
had continued to conduct a series of Soft Skills Training courses, collaborating with several hosting companies to 
provide training and industrial attachment, such as:

Training        Date    
Emotional Intelligence at Work     26 February 2015
Effective Business Communication (Advance level)   9 -10 April 2015
Creative Thinking and Problem Solving    11 - 12 June 2015
Effective Time Management Report     17 August 2015
Stress and Conflict Management     17 December 2015

SEDIA Chief Executive Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub Johari exchanging the MoU with UMP Vice Chancellor 
Professor Dato’ Daing Mohd Nasir Bin Daing during the Bio Borneo 2015 launching ceremony

The NTEP soft skills training series has seen strong interest by young professionals
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Rural Skills Development Programme

In 2015, SEDIA held a series of Rural Skills Development Programme, a collaborative effort with several skills-
training providers. The target for course participants were particularly those from the lower income backgrounds 
and living in rural areas, with the objectives of providing opportunities for women to acquire skills that will aid in 
becoming economically independent, and to further build the number of female entrepreneurs.

In concluding each of the programmes, the participants received certificates from the related skills training 
providers giving them recognition of competency in the field offered during each programme. The acquired skills 
will allow these participant to secure a new source of income and improve their standard of living.

The list of Rural Skills Development programmes is as follows:

Course    Training provider   Date
Basic Cake Baking Course  Beaufort Community College  10 June 2015

Baking and Pastry Course  Keningau Vocational College  20 - 21 August 2015

Creative Design & Ethnic   Swepp Academy    7 - 11 September 2015
Accessory-Making Course

Tudung & Hijab-Making Course Nuvis Sabah Training & Consultancy 7 - 11 September 2015

Basic Automotive Repair Course Tambunan Community College  19 - 23 October 2015

Corporate Profile

Participants of the baking and pastry course were being briefed by Ms. Anita, trainer from Keningau Vocational College before 
the commencement of the two-day training
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SDC PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Beginning in 2016, SEDIA will be embarking on the Third Phase of the SDC as well as the Eleventh Malaysia Plan 
(11MP). Up to this point, SEDIA, through the initiatives in the SDC, has had encouraging results in driving the 
economic development of the state particularly in focused sectors such as tourism, logistics, agriculture, oil and 
gas, and human capital development. Concurrently, SEDIA has also given greater emphasis to the development 
of SMEs and SMIs especially among the Bumiputera communities through close cooperation with TERAJU.

The initiatives and programmes implemented thus far have been very encouraging. The initial Gross Domestic 
Product (GDP) and GDP per capita targets for the SDC were set at RM63.2 billion and RM14,784 by the year 
2025 (1987 price). Based on data compiled by the Department of Statistics, the GDP and GDP per capita in the 
state in 2015 (2010 price) were RM70.4 billion and RM19,734 respectively. 

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
Despite the less favourable world economic scenario in recent years, the GDP growth for Sabah as well as 
Malaysia has shown positive development. The key takeaway is that Sabah’s GDP growth had risen consistently, 
from 2.1 percent in 2011 to 3.2 percent and 3.3 percent respectively in 2012 and 2013. It eventually rose strongly 
to 5 percent in 2014 and continued to strengthen to 6.1 percent in 2015.

The encouraging GDP growth had been driven by the key focus sectors of the SDC, comprising of agriculture, 
oil and gas, services (including tourism), and the construction sector. The production of Crude Palm Oil (CPO) 
and Palm Kernel Oil (PKO) have been major contributors to the State’s economy. It is interesting to note that 
the state’s economic growth in 2015 at 6.1 percent had already overtaken the national economic growth at 5.0 
percent.

Cargo Throughput

In spite of the relatively strong economic growth, the challenging economic landscape in 2015 had affected 
the performance of cargo throughput in Sabah in that particular year. In regards to cargo throughput, it had 
experienced a total drop of 9 percent in container throughput from 398,800 TEUs in 2014 to 363,185 TEUs in 
year 2015. The lower container throughput was partly due to the relatively lower transhipment volume handled in 
2015 at 1,556 TEUs as compared to 13,199 TEUs in 2014. The total cargo throughput had remained resilient at 
about 27,844,210 tonne (see Table 1).

Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority

CHART 1: ANNUAL GDP GROWTH (%) SABAH, 2011 – 2015

Source: Department of Statistics & IMF, 2015
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* Wharf: cargo handled at wharfs using port facilities
** Anchor: cargo handled at private jetties/ mid stream
Source: Sabah Port Sdn. Bhd. (SPSB)

YEAR Total Tonnage at 
Wharf

Total Tonnage at 
Anchor

Total
Tonnage

TEU
Container

2008 16,192,742 13,064,173 28,540,260 292,688
2009 14,605,651  10,173,434  24,779,085 277,905
2010 17,675,800  10,715,075  28,390,875 326,825
2011 17,809,127  10,126,588  27,935,715 356,195

2012 17,679,184  10,023,624  27,702,808 374,624
2013 17,514,293     9,904,011  27,418,304 373,042
2014 18,477,050     9,894,671  28,371,721 398,800
2015 16,834,876  11,009,334  27,844,210 363,185

TABLE 1: SABAH PORT’S ANNUAL CARGO AND CONTAINER THROUGHPUT (2008-2015)

Tourism Sector Performance

The tourism sector is one of the main contributors to revenue and economic development to the state. Visitor arrivals 
to Sabah had decreased slightly to 3,176,226 from 3,230,645 in 2014. However, in 2015 Sabah still managed to 
achieve tourism revenue of RM6.52 billion, higher than those achieved annually from 2008-2012. 

Despite the decline in tourist arrivals in 2014 and 2015, Kota Kinabalu had been recognised as one of the best 
resort destinations in Asia in 2015, by CEI Asia a leading tour and travel publication group. This to some extent 
will improve the perception and potential of the tourism sector in Sabah in the years to come. This recognition has 
placed Kota Kinabalu on par with Bali and Phuket. 

CHART 2: TOURISM ARRIVALS TO SABAH (2008-2015)

Source: Sabah Tourism Board/ Tourism Malaysia and from a statement by Datuk Seri Masidi Manjun, Sabah Minister 
of Tourism, Culture and Nature in a Daily Express article, dated March 13, 2015. 
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Employment Trends and Unemployment rate 

Based on the employment data from the Department of Statistics Malaysia, total labour force in the state has 
increased by 9.4 percent from 1.70 million in 2014 to 1.86 million people in 2015. Despite the challenging economic 
conditions in 2015 about 95 percent were successfully employed.

CHART 3: SABAH LABOUR FORCE TRENDS 2011-2015

Source: Department of Statistics, Malaysia 

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE
During the Third Phase (2016-2025) of the SDC, regarded as the expansion phase, SEDIA will continue with the 
proactive measures of the Second Phase to attract investment both locally and internationally as well as increase 
the participation of Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) in the SDC.

As the organisation tasked with the implementation of the SDC, SEDIA has made considerable efforts in investment 
promotion. Since the launch of SDC in 2008, RM153.4 billion in total cumulative committed investment had been 
secured as at December 2015. In addition, total cumulative realised investment had reached RM55.103 billion 
during the same period (see Chart 4). The total cumulative committed and realised investment also includes the 
Entry Point Projects (EPPs) as listed in Table 2.

CHART 4: COMMITTED AND REALISED SDC CUMULATIVE INVESTMENT (2008- 2015)

Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority
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SDC Progress

FINANCIAL AND PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE 

SDC Projects Funded under Federal Government Development Allocations

SDC projects monitored by SEDIA are implemented expeditiously in line with the principles of good governance 
in accordance with the government Treasury Instructions. SEDIA’s development expenditure under the Tenth 
Malaysia Plan (10MP) had managed to reach 90% expenditure of total allocation received (see Table 3). This 
performance is the highest amongst the corridor authorities, with the average being 80% to 85% expenditure of 
development funds. Higher development expenditure will boost the state’s economy through the spillover effects 
from projects implemented. See also Table 4 for a list of the Federal Government-funded SDC projects.

TABLE 2: ENTRY POINT PROJECTS (EPPs)

Key Focus Area (KFA) Entry Point Project

Tourism Semporna - Borneo’s Marine Paradise
Coastal Tourism Development

Nature Adventure
Palm Oil Agropolitan at Beluran and Kemabong

Palm Oil Industrial Clusters (POICs) at Lahad Datu and Sandakan
Manufacturing & Logistics Kota Kinabalu Industrial Park (KKIP)

Sapangar Bay Container Port as Transshipment Hub
Oil, Gas & Energy Lahad Datu Regasification Terminal (replaced by a Power Plant in Sandakan)

Sabah Oil and Gas Terminal (SOGT) and Sabah-Sarawak Gas Pipeline 
(SSGP)
Kimanis Power Plant
Lahad Datu Power Plant
Sipitang Oil and Gas Industrial Park (SOGIP)
Gas Separation Plant at SOGT
Extension of the SSGP to KKIP

Agriculture Shrimp Aquaculture at Pintasan and Telaga
National Seaweed Nucleus
Sea Cucumber and Tiger Grouper Combined Culture
Permanent Food Production Park
Swiftlet Commercial Centre
Sabah Agro-Industrial Precinct
Integrated Marine Fish Culture
High-Finned Grouper and Barramundi Culture

Education Developing the Hospitality & Tourism Cluster
Private Skills Training Centres
Attracting International Students

Greater KK Developing and Modernising KK as a Lifestyle Hub
Improving Early Childcare Education
Boosting Private and Public Healthcare
Improving Mobility and Travel Experience
Boosting Tourism in Greater KK
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TABLE 3: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF SEDIA PROJECTS UNDER 10MP (RM, MILLION) AS 
AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

YEAR ALLOCATION EXPENDITURE BALANCE EXPENDITURE 
PERCENTAGE

2011 263.95 254.39 9.56 96%
2012 230.41 223.11            7.3 97%
2013          186.9 156.87          30.03 84%
2014          115.5    94.11          21.39 81%
2015 173.42 141.42          32 82%
TOTAL 970.18 869.9        100.28 90%

Source: Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority (SEDIA) 2015

TABLE 4: FEDERAL GOVERNMENT-FUNDED PROJECTS

Sector Type of 
Project

Name of Project Status                                    
(Completed/ In-Progress)

Tourism Feasibility 
Studies, 
Research & 
Training 
Projects

Impact Assessment of Palm Oil Plantations and Mills on Quality of 
Rivers

Completed July 2011

Kajian Kemungkinan Pembinaan Jalan Serusop - Kelawat, Kota 
Belud

Completed July 2010

Kajian Pelan Pengurusan Lokaliti Stesen dan Hub-Stesen di Taman 
Banjaran Crocker

Completed July 2010

Kajian Pelan Induk Pelancongan bagi Kawasan Persisiran Pantai dari 
Tuaran ke Kota Belud

Completed February 2011

Kajian Pelan Pengurusan Taman Pulau Penyu Completed March 2012

Kajian Alternatif Bekalan Tenaga Letrik ke Taman Tunku Abdul 
Rahman

Completed July 2011

Kajian Alternatif Bekalan Air Bersih ke Taman Tunku Abdul Rahman Completed June 2011

Kajian Peningkatan Air Panas di Poring Hot Spring, Ranau Completed February 2012

Kajian Pembentukan 'Wildlife Corridor' Menghubungkan Taman 
Kinabalu dan Taman Banjaran Crocker

Completed July 2011

Kajian Pelan Pengurusan Taman Pulau Tiga Completed June 2012

Physical 
Projects

Rekreasi Hutan dan Eko Pelancongan - Menaiktaraf / Penyelengga-
ran / Baikpulih Kawasan Pelancongan di Hutan Simpan Kebun Cina

Completed November 2009

Projek Peningkatan Kemudahan Pelancongan (Tenom, Tambunan, 
Nabawan dan Keningau)

Completed November 2015

Pembangunan Pusat Hub Repositori Maklumat Koleksi Budaya dan 
Saintifik Muzium Sabah

Completed April 2010

Penaikan Taraf Pameran Tetap Muzium Sabah Completed September 2011

SDC - Cadangan Perumahan Rakyat di Kg. Gusi, Kinarut In-Progress
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Sector Type of 
Project

Name of Project Status                                    
(Completed/ In-Progress)

Agriculture Feasibility 
Studies, 
Research & 
Training 
Projects

Taman Kekal Pengeluaran Makanan Sg. Koyah, Kinabatangan Completed December 2010

Taman Kekal Pengeluaran Makanan Mandalipau, Papar Completed September 2011

Taman Kekal Pengeluaran Makanan Sg. Lokan, Kinabatangan Completed December 2010

Taman Kekal Pengeluaran Makanan Langkawit, Papar Completed - Not Viable

Biomass Policy Completed July 2011

Physical 
Projects
 

Projek Khas Tanam Baru Dengan Getah di Kawasan Termundur 
Semenanjung Bengkoka, Pitas

Completed 

Tanam Baru Getah Berkelompok dengan Klon Lateks Balak Completed

Pembinaan Jalan Pertanian di beberapa daerah (21 sub projek) Completed

Projek Agropolitan Pitas In Progress

Projek Agropolitan Kemabong In-Progress

Keningau Integrated Livestock Centre In-Progress

Projek Agropolitan Beluran In-Progress

Projek Agropolitan Tongod In-Progress

Projek Mini Estet Sejahtera (MESEJ) Completed September 2013

Sabah Agro-Industrial Precinct (SAIP) In-Progress

Manufacturing 
and Logistics

Physical 
Projects

Projek Kelompok Industri Berasaskan Kelapa Sawit (Lahad Datu) 
Fasa II

In-Progress

Projek Berkelompok Berasaskan Kelapa Sawit (Sandakan) In-Progress

Kuala Penyu Mini Ko-Nelayan Kompleks In-Progress

Menaiktaraf Kawasan Persekitaran Pusat Bandaraya Kota Kinabalu In-Progress

Pengorekan Dasar Laut - Laluan Masuk ke Kawasan Pelabuhan, Jeti 
Minyak dan POIC Sandakan 

In-Progress

Pembinaan Jalan Tongod Pinangah In-Progress

Menaiktaraf Jalan Labuk dari KM15 ke KM26 (11.0 KM), Sandakan Completed April 2015
Pembinaan Jalan Dua Hala dari UITM ke Sepanggar Bay Container 
Terminal (3KM), Kota Kinabalu

Completed Jun 2015

Others Research & 
Training 
Projects

Hutan Bukan Kayu: Penyelidikan dan Pembangunan (R&D) Completed

Social Development BCIC (Bumiputera Commercial and Industrial 
Community)

Completed

Physical 
Projects

Perhutanan Masyarakat Completed

Penyediaan Infrastruktur bagi Projek Sandakan Education Hub Completed

Projek Pembiakan Badak Sumatra di Negeri Sabah Completed  February 2012

Pusat Inkubator Pembangunan Kandungan Kreatif Completed  February 2014

TABLE 4: FEDERAL GOVERNMENT-FUNDED PROJECTS (Continued)
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SEDIA is also currently overlooking the operations and management of the Keningau Integrated Livestock Centre 
(KILC). In 2015, KILC had a total of 924 dairy cows with average milk production (July-September) amounting to 
15.9 liters per day for each cow, higher than the national production average of 8.5 liters per day. In June of the 
same year, the average milk production had reached its highest level ever at 18.28 liters per day for each cow. 
Milk production in KILC is now regarded as among the highest in Malaysia, thanks to the dedication of all staff at 
KILC in consistently achieving the production targets.

KILC Performance

HUMAN CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT

In line with efforts to raise the level of human capital development during the Second Phase of the SDC (2011-
2015), SEDIA had doubled its efforts in developing human capital as well as entrepreneurship during the year in 
review.

In regards to SDC human capital development initiatives, SEDIA had carried out joint effort with PEMANDU 
in improving the capabilities of graduates to find employment, through the National Talent Enhancement 
Programme (NTEP). SEDIA had also carried out the Jobseeker initiative involving the development of a database 
that compiles data on graduates currently seeking employment. Through this initiative, SEDIA serves as a ‘One 
Stop Agency’ to facilitate the coordination of supply and demand of manpower needs in the SDC. During this 
year, SEDIA had also carried out Manpower Training Programme and Entrepreneurship Training Programme.

Manpower Placement

In 2015, a total of 454 graduates and school leavers have been registered with SEDIA through the NTEP 
programme, and 774 people through the SDC Jobseeker initiative, with a combined total of 1,228 people.

The NTEP programme, which had been carried out through a joint effort by SEDIA and PEMANDU, assists graduates in enhancing their soft skills.
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TABLE 5: BREAKDOWN OF GRADUATES AND SCHOOL LEAVERS REGISTERED WITH SEDIA (2015) 
UNDER THE NATIONAL TALENT ENHANCEMENT PROGRAMME (NTEP) AND SDC JOB SEEKERS

EDUCATION Participants Registered 
under NTEP

Partipants Registered 
under SDC Job Seekers

PERCENTAGE (%)

PMR    3     0.24
SPM 137  81 17.8
SKM   16   1.3
SIJIL     6   0.5
STPM   79  29   8.8
DIPLOMA 130 127 20.9
DEGREE 
(BACHELOR)

  83 535 50.3

PHD   2    0.16
TOTAL 454 774                100

Entrepreneurship Training Programme

A key feature of the SDC Entrepreneurship Trainning Programme is the SME Incubator programme. Located at 
the Sabah Agro-Industrial Precinct (SAIP), the programme offers incubator facilities for entrepreneurs interested in 
initiating agri-based businesses. 

The participants will be exposed to a variety of agri-based technologies, and assisted through business training 
modules. Advisory services, consulting, business networking, venture capital financing and other facilities have 
also been made available. Support programmes such as the 1Agro-SAIP training programme, SDC 1BIZLink, and 
SAIP Hotdesk have also been organised to support the participants.

Manpower Training Programme

Concurrently, SEDIA had also organised training programmes that directly aids in the development of human 
capital in the SDC. During the 2014-2015 period SEDIA had organised eight training programmes benefitting 199 
participants.

1Agro-SAIP participants are given various opportunities to gain practical skills in downstream agriculture activities.
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The 1Agro-SAIP Training Programme is organised with the aim of preparing and empowering potential entrepreneurs 
in agro-science and technology. A total of 23 courses have thus far been organised, benefitting 1,384 participants.

DATE COURSE TITLE NO. OF 
PARTICPANTS

03 September 2012 Pharmaceutical Herbs Industry  34
01 & 02 October 2012 Swiftlet Rearing and Bird nest Processing Industry 155
03 October 2012 Business Plan Workshop (with SME Bank)  41
03 & 04 December 2012 Agro-Food Industry 102
05 & 06 December 2012 Agro-Organic Industry 107
29 January 2013 Bioscience & Biotechnology Industry   33
30 January 2013 Business Plan Workshop (with SME Bank)   37
21 May 2013 Rearing and Bird Nest Swiftlet Processing Industry   36

25 June 2013 Fisheries and Aquaculture Industries   72
27 August 2013 Neutraceutical Industry: Potential of Soursop and Watermelon   50
22 October 2013 Essential Oils and Aromatic Plants Industry   51
29 October 2013 Business Plan Workshop   38
30 October 2013 Workshop on Preparations for Cash Management and 

Bookkeeping
  29

11 March 2014 Introduction and Industry Opportunities for Controlled 
Environment Farming (CEF)

  65

20 May 2014 Introduction and Industry Opportunities for Plant Seed 
Production

  68

23 September 2014 E-commerce Business and Marketing   49
30 September 2014 Crop Post-Harvest Handling Technology   76
29 October 2014 Outreach Awareness/Dialogue Programme – Financing for 

SMEs in the SDC
  54

16 June 2015 Commercial Honey Farming   66
26 August 2015 Processing Technology and Application for Virgin Coconut Oil 

(VCO)
  63

01 December 2015 Packaging and Labelling for Agriculture and Food Production   71
02 December 2015 Introduction and Industry Opportunities for Controlled 

Environment Farming (CEF)
  63 

TOTAL 1384

TABLE 6: SUMMARY OF 1AGRO-SAIP COURSES (2012 - 2015)

The SDC Hotdesk is the entry point for prospective entrepreneurs in making their first step through SAIP, involving 
the generation of business ideas, business models and business plans in preparation for joing the SME Incubator 
programme. The SDC Hotdesk programme has thus far managed to guide as many as 246 potential entrepreneurs, 
while a total of 10 entrepreneurs have managed to form the first group under the SME Incubator Programme.

The SDC 1BizLink programme has been established as a solution provider complementing the SME Incubator 
programme, providing support through a range of assistance and business support services. Concurrently, 
SDC 1Bizlink provides assistance to SMEs, start-ups and investors in their efforts to develop and connect their 
businesses in any of the SDC economic clusters.
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TERAJU @ SDC

TERAJU, a unit in the Prime Minister’s Department set up to drive economic progress and encourage participation 
from Bumiputera entrepreneurs, had introduced specialised programmes to provide Bumiputera entrepreneurs 
with business opportunities and financing, with the TeraS Programme as the main initiative. The programme will 
identify Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) that have high growth potential, and assist in matching business 
and financial opportunities. Since its inception in 2011, TERAJU had produced positive results through various 
initiatives that had generated a value of RM60 billion.

These initiatives support the national agenda and are being implemented across ministries, agencies and 
government-linked companies through three main programmes such as the Bumiputera High Performing 
Company (TeraS), Facilitation Fund, and Bumiputera Startup Entrepreneurs Scheme (SUPERB); implemented 
for the benefit of Bumiputera entrepreneurs.

Under the Syarikat Bumiputera Berprestasi Tinggi (TeraS) programme, high potential Bumiputera companies 
are qualified to be given special assistance and will be provided with business opportunities based on merit. 
Reputable Bumiputera corporations are assisted in enhancing their ability to compete at regional and global 
levels.

A satellite office known as TERAJU@SDC was opened and is located at Wisma SEDIA, for ease of reaching out 
to Sabah Bumiputera entrepreneurs. As a result, 28 projects have been approved from 2012 until 2014 with total 
Gross Development Cost (GDC) of RM685.45 million. These companies secured RM79.68 million grant under 
the Facilitation Fund. By 2015, nine further Sabah Bumiputera projects had received Facilitation Fund approval 
amounting to RM11.72 million with total Gross Development Cost (GDC) of RM114.16 million.

The overall project coverage includes various locations in Sabah, and project breakdown by sector covers 
property development, followed by marine, oil and gas, business services, food manufacturing, wholesale/ 
retail, tourism, logistics, renewable energy, retail, and palm oil.

TABLE 7: FACILITATION FUNDS APPROVED UNDER TERAJU@SDC             
(2012 - 2015)

PROJECT 
DEVELOPMENT COST

FACILITATION 
FUND

YEAR PROJECT NO. RM (Million) Bound RM (Million)

2012   2 70.2     9.19
2013   8 182.07   18.55
2014 18 433.18    51.94
2015   9 114.16   12.72

TOTAL 37 799.61  92.4

Source: TERAJU@SDC 2016
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CHART 5: PRIVATE SECTOR PROJECT INVESTMENT (FACILITATION FUND) APPROVED UNDER 
TERAJU@SDC, BY LOCATION (2012 – 2015)

Apart from the TeraS programme, the SUPERB programme with a government allocation of RM100 million fund 
for three years will help creative and innovative young Bumiputera entrepreneurs find their footing. SUPERB 
had since its inception in 2014 received more than 4,000 quality and highly innovative ideas submitted from 
young, aspiring entrepreneurs all over the country, for its latest Series 3. The other goal of SUPERB is to 
seek higher quality applications, having not only element of creativity and innovation but also the potential 
to penetrate overseas markets. TERAJU strive to create awareness and disseminate information about the 
programme more aggressively in Sabah and Sarawak via on-ground engagement efforts.  Meanwhile it was 
disclosed that out of the 76 successful applicants for the grants, four come from Sabah and two from Sarawak.

CHART 6: APPROVED TERAS COMPANIES UNDER TERAJU@SDC BASED ON SECTOR 
(2012 – 2015)

This year, SEDIA is planning to launch the Bumiputera Entrepreneurship Development Fund for Start-up and 
SMEs. This will be funded through the RM15 million special allocations for Sabah in the National Budget 
2015 and it will be implemented with TERAJU and other agencies to support the development of Bumiputera 
entrepreneurs.
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CONCLUSION

Overall, the development of Sabah through SDC initiatives has been encouraging, and remains on track for the 
Third Phase of the SDC (2016 - 2025). The upcoming phase will present new challenges as apart from running 
concurrently with the 11MP, it covers the final five years towards realising Vision 2020. In this phase, SEDIA 
will give greater emphasis to efforts in improving Sabah’s global connectivity. Priority will be directed towards 
increasing the efficiency of the logistics sector by improving relevant land, sea and air infrastructure as well as 
integrating the ICT and communications sector. 

In furtherance of these goals, SDC projects approved under the 11MP focus on the integration of global logistics 
and connectivity such as the Expansion of Sapangar Container Port project, Master Plan Study on an Aviation Hub 
and Air Freight logistics, and the Construction of a jetty at POIC Sandakan. Concurrently, the Federal government 
has also approved the construction of a Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) system in Kota Kinabalu. 

In recognition of the foundation that had been prepared thus far, in terms of infrastructure, economic development, 
human capital development and entrepreneurship development, the SDC offers tremendous potential for Sabah 
to be one of the most attractive investment destination in Malaysia and achieve the goals and targets of the SDC 
by 2025. 

By the end of 2015, Sabah has emerged as the fastest growing economy in Malaysia, with the exception of Labuan. 
At 6.1%, Sabah’s economic growth had surpassed the national GDP growth at 5.0 percent. It had even surpassed 
other dynamic economies in Malaysia, such as Selangor (5.7%), Penang (5.5%) and Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala 
Lumpur (5.3%). 

Sabah’s GDP and GDP per capita of RM70.4 billion and RM19,734 respectively in 2015 (at 2010 price) had 
indicated that the various measures introduced during the First and Second phase of SDC had gained some 
traction. Sabah has unmistakably emerged as one of the leading investment destination in Malaysia, and the 
region; while Kota Kinabalu recognised as one of the best resort destinations in Asia.

All of these achievements have in no small measure been catalysed by the aggressive and structured implementation 
of the SDC projects resulting in the surge of investment unprecedented in post-independence Sabah.

Jalan MESEJ Kg. Laba, Sebatik, Tawau
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The participants of the first round of the 1Agro-SAIP business pitching seen together with the SEDIA panel
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The Statement of Corporate Governance sets out the framework and process through which Members of Sabah 
Economic Development and Investment Authority (“The Authority”) and the Management of Sabah Economic 
Development and Investment Authority (“SEDIA Management”) ensure that the operational policies and 
procedures are in accordance with the prevailing laws, rules, regulations and best practices.

Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority (“SEDIA”) is entrusted as a One-Stop Authority to 
drive the Sabah Development Corridor (“SDC”), with the primary responsibility to plan, co-ordinate, promote and 
accelerate the development of SDC.

Section 4, the Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority Enactment 2009 (“SEDIA Enactment”) 
stipulates that the Yang Di-Pertua Negeri may, from time to time, determine by notification in the gazette, the 
project or projects over which, the Authority shall perform its function under this Enactment and such projects shall 
be collectively known as the “Sabah Development Corridor”.

The Authority is the highest decision-making body of SEDIA. It is governed by its Members under the Chairmanship 
of Y.A.B. Datuk Seri Panglima Musa Haji Aman, the Chief Minister of Sabah cum Minister of Finance.

Other members of the Authority during the year are:

1. Y.B. Tan Sri Datuk Seri Panglima Joseph Pairin Kitingan
 (Deputy Chief Minister and Minister of Infrastructure Development, Sabah)
 - Deputy Chairman I
2. Y.Bhg. Datuk Peter Pang En Yin
 - Deputy Chairman II
3. Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Datuk Seri Panglima Dr. Ali bin Hamsa
 (Chief Secretary to the Government of Malaysia, Prime Minister’s Department) 
 - Member
4. Y.B. Tan Sri Datuk Seri Panglima Haji Sukarti Wakiman
 (State Secretary of Sabah)
 - Member
5. Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Dr. Mohd Irwan Serigar bin Abdullah
 (Secretary General of Treasury, Ministry of Finance, Malaysia)
 - Member
6. Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Datuk Seri Panglima Dr. Wan Abdul Aziz bin Wan Abdullah
 (Chairman, Malaysia Airport Holdings Berhad)
 - Member
7. Y.Bhg. Dato’ Ahmad Husni bin Hussain
 (Director General, Public Private Partnership Unit (UKAS), Prime Minister’s Department)
 - Member
8. Y.Bhg. Datuk Dr. Rahamat Bivi binti Yusoff 
 (Director General, Economic Planning Unit (EPU), Prime Minister’s Department)
 - Member
9. Y.Bhg. Datuk Pengiran Hassanel bin Datuk Pg. Hj. Mohd Tahir
 (Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Finance, Sabah)
 - Member
10. Y.Bhg. Datuk Osman bin Haji Jamal
 (Director, State Economic Planning Unit, Sabah)
 - Member (Appointed on 1st April 2015)

THE AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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During the review period, the Authority met a total of three (3) times. The Authority Meetings were held on  March 
24, August 18 and December 3, 2015. The agenda and full set of papers for deliberation were distributed in a 
timely manner before each meeting. This was to ensure that the Members had sufficient notices and thus, were 
well prepared for each meeting. The meetings included the consideration of the Authority’s long-term strategy, 
plan, budget, monitoring of SEDIA Management Performance and Authority’s performance review. All issues 
were deliberated and decisions made were minuted accordingly.

To assist the Authority in the performance of its functions and duties, under section 9 of SEDIA Enactment, the 
following SEDIA Committees have been established:

1. Implementation Co-ordination Committee;
2. Nomination, Establishment and Remuneration Committee;
3. Finance and Investment Committee;
4. Audit Committee;
5. Development Planning Committee;
6. Consultative Panel and Focus Group; and
7. Tender and Procurement Board.

The Authority is committed to ensure that it provides a clear, comprehensive, true and fair view of SEDIA’s 
financial management and performance in the financial year, primarily through the financial statements and 
annual report. The financial statement was internally prepared and audited by the Private Audit Firm (external 
auditor), under statutory purview of the National Audit Department within the provisions of Audit Act 1957 [Act 62] 
and in line with provisions under the Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority Enactment 2009.

AUTHORITY MEETINGS

SEDIA COMMITTEES

ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT

Y.Bhg. Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub bin Haji Johari (JP) is the Secretary to the Authority cum President and Chief 
Executive of the Authority.

The Authority is committed to ensure SEDIA practices the highest standards of corporate governance, in keeping 
with the Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance. 

The Authority provides strategic directions, reviews and approves policies and decisions for the development 
and promotion of the Sabah Development Corridor, ensuring proper financial administration and administrative 
support as well as oversees the overall management of SEDIA. 
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Management

In the day-to-day operations, SEDIA is managed by the Chief Executive. In furtherance of the objectives and 
effective performance of the functions of SEDIA, the Chief Executive is assisted by the Management Members. 
The Chief Executive, appointed by the Authority, has management control over all the officers and staff of SEDIA. 
All official management decisions, operational and financial transactions are deliberated, prepared and verified 
by the officers and require the Chief Executive’s approval prior to being executed and allowed for publications 
and distributions. 

Operational and Financial

For all its administrations and financial procurements and approvals, SEDIA is guided by an internal guideline 
as laid down under A Summary of Operating Procedures Governing the Limits of Administrative and Financial 
Authority for Members, Committees, Chief Executive and Management Members of SEDIA (“SEDIA LOA”). Also 
for service and work procurements and approvals of development projects of the Sabah Development Corridor, 
SEDIA is guided by the provisions of the Treasury Instructions and decided by Tender and Procurement Board 
of SEDIA (“SEDIA TPB”).

In addition, SEDIA is also subjected to the Financial Procedure Act 1957 [Act 61] and all other financial procedures 
as laid down from time to time by the State of Sabah, Federal Ministry of Finance and the Prime Minister’s 
Department.

The internal and external control system is provided to safeguard SEDIA from fraud, loss or failure in its functions 
and operations.

Income Statement

Within the financial year, SEDIA received operating grants from the Federal Government to finance its operations 
and commitments. Grants received for the year ended December 31, 2015 amounted to RM4,420,000 compared 
to RM7,956,000 for 2014. The marked reduction in operating grants by the Federal Government totalled 
RM3,536,000 (44.44%) compared to the previous year. To accommodate the decrease in government grants, 
the Authority has approved interest income of RM8,495,188 to be recognised in the income statement in  the 
financial year 2015. The total operating budget and capital management approved by the Authority in 2015 was 
RM14,250,000 (2014: RM14,000,000).

SEDIA received other income generated from profits of deposits in licensed banks in Malaysia. During the 
financial year ended December 31, 2015, SEDIA recorded other income of RM78,017 (2014: RM130,684).

In year 2015, SEDIA recorded as surplus of RM2,597,498 compared to deficit of RM6,626,986 for the financial 
year 2014. This is followed by recognition of interest income in the income statement during the year. SEDIA 
remains committed to maintain excellent performance and efficiency in its financial management in line with its 
objectives.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015 are as follows:

• Staff costs have been recorded at RM5,763,908 (2014: RM9,427,607). Decrease in personnel costs 
compared to 2014 was due to reduction in the payment of incentive in the form of staff’s contracts and 
performance bonus and employment obligation benefit expenses for 2015.

The other main components of the operating costs are as follows:

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REVIEW

INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL CONTROLS AND COMPLIANCE
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• Promotional costs in 2015 was RM1,063,389 compared to the previous year’s RM1,158,843. The activities 
consisted of Strategic Media Campaigns, participation in Overseas Trade Missions, Conferences and 
Seminars, and Domestic Trade Expos and Exhibitions as well as other promotional and awareness events. 
During the year, SEDIA focused on attracting foreign investment through foreign publication and participated 
in the trade mission delegation organised by MIDA. 

• SEDIA remains committed to carrying out its functions to monitor the status of all projects under the Sabah 
Development Corridor. In 2015, administrative and other operating costs amounted RM3,568,410 (2014: 
RM4,127,220).

Balance Sheet

The main components of the Balance Sheet are as follows:
 
In the year 2015, SEDIA has spent RM2,696 for the procurement of computers, printers and software, 
while RM2,218 for office equipment.

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments balance as at year end 2015 was RM4,215,159 as compared 
to RM1,838,525 for the previous year. Increasing number of receivables, deposits and prepayment were 
attributed to the Keningau Integrated Livestock Centre (KILC) project costs which is fully financed by 
SEDIA operating grant. As of December 31, 2015, the cumulative net financing of Keningau Integrated 
Livestock Centre (KILC) was RM3,234,587 (2014: RM1,714,797) .

Cash and bank balances for the financial year ended December 31, 2015 amounted to RM238,795,261 
(2014: RM261,898,891) and is reserved for its contractual obligations under the Ninth and Tenth 
Malaysian Plan, operating expenses and liabilities.

SEDIA’s fund for development expenditure as at December 31, 2015 amounted to RM197,072,574 
(2014: RM246,594,469) which was mostly devoted to contractual obligations for projects under the Ninth 
and Tenth Malaysia Plan.

Special programme grant’s cash balance as at December 31, 2015 amounted to RM34,997,856 (2014: 
RM7,228,442) for SME Facilitation Fund Programme and National Talent Enhancement Programme 
(NTEP) expenditures and commitment.

Other payables and accruals as at December 31, 2015 of RM1,239,510 consisted of contractual 
obligations under the operating grant to be settled after the year end (2014: RM1,797,196).

During the financial year, SEDIA continued to intensify its activities and programmes, pursuant to its objectives to 
promote the Sabah Development Corridor (SDC) and to further enhance its operational capacity, capability and 
competency. Strategic fund management and placement of its consolidated funds had been initiated as stipulated 
under section 5, section 7, section 14 and section 15 of SEDIA Enactment 2009.

I.

II.

III.

IV.

V.

VI.
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STATEMENT BY THE MEMBERS 
SABAH ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

We, Datuk Seri Panglima Musa Haji Aman and Datuk Peter Pang En Yin being two of the Members of SABAH 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT AUTHORITY state that, in the opinion of the Members of the 
Authority, the financial statements which comprise of balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes 
in equity, cash flow statement and notes to the financial statements are properly drawn up to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of SABAH ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT AUTHORITY as at  31 
December 2015 and of its operating results and cash flow for the period ended on that date.

On behalf of the members,

………………………………………………………………………………
Name : Y.A.B. DATUK SERI PANGLIMA MUSA HAJI AMAN
Position : Chairman
Date : 29 April 2016
Place : Kota Kinabalu

………………………………………………………………………………
Name : Y.BHG. DATUK PETER PANG EN YIN
Position : Deputy Chairman II/Chairman of Audit Committee
Date : 29 April 2016
Place : Kota Kinabalu
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We, Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub bin Haji Johari and Yunus Gastom Abdullah, the officers primarily responsible 
for the financial management of SABAH ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT AUTHORITY, do 
solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes 
in equity and cash flows statement, to the best of our knowledge and belief, are correct and we make this 
solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory 
Declaration Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the above named at KOTA KINABALU, Sabah this day 28 April 2016.  
.

……………………………………………………         ……………………………………………………
      Datuk Dr. Mohd Yaakub bin Haji Johari   Yunus Gastom Abdullah
       

Before me,

……………………………………
Commissioner for Oaths

STATUTORY DECLARATION BY THE OFFICERS PRIMARILY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE FINANCIAL 
MANAGEMENT OF SABAH ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
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AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015

BALANCE SHEET

                                                                                            
                                                                                                               Note
                                                                                                          
ASSETS
               Property, Plant and Equipment                                                   3
            TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

               Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepayments                          4
               Cash and Cash Equivalents                                                        5

               TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY
               Operating Fund

TOTAL EQUITY

LIABILITIES
               SDC Development Fund                                                             6
               Special Programme Grant                                                           7 

               Special Project (R&D) grant                                                        8

               Employment Benefit Obligations                                                 9

               TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

                               Other Payables and Accruals                                                    10
                                                                  Employment Benefit Obligations                                                  9               
               TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

2015
RM

177,252

 
2014

RM

381,337
177,252 381,337

4,215,159
238,795,261

1,838,525
261,898,891

       

243,010,420  263,737,416

243,187,672 264,118,753

8,890,724 6,293,226

8,890,724 6,293,226

197,072,574
 34,997,856

-
588,912

 

246,594,469
7,228,442

-
1,788,907

232,659,342 255,611,818

1,239,510
398,096

1,797,196
416,513

1,637,606 2,213,709

234,296,948 257,825,527

243,187,672 264,118,753
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

INCOME STATEMENT

 

                                                                                                           Note Operating Funds
RM

As at January 1, 2014
   Deficit for the year ended 2014                                                                                                    
At December 31, 2014 / January 1, 2015

Surplus for the year ended 2015

At December 31, 2015

12,920,212
[6,626,986]

6,293,226

2,597,498

8,890,724

 
                                                                                                                     Note

Income
           Operating grants received
           Other income                                                                                       11

Expenses
          Operating expenses                                                                                12

Surplus/[Deficit] for the year

2015
RM

2014
RM

4,420,000
8,573,205

7,956,000
130,684

12,993,205

[10,395,707]

8,086,684

[14,713,670]

2,597,498 [6,626,986]
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

                                                                                                                                Note

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
                  Surplus/[Deficit] for the financial year
 Adjustment for:                            Depreciation of property, plant and equipment                                                                                            Unrealised gain on foreign exchange
 Employment benefit obligation 
                   Interest income
                  Over provision of employment benefit obligations in prior year
                      Deficit before working capital changes
 INCREASE/[DECREASE] IN:
                 Other receivables and deposits
 Other payables and accruals
                  Cash used in operating activities
                               Employee benefit plan payments
                  Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITY
                  Interest received
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment                                            
                                                                          Decrease /[Increase] in short-term deposits with maturity exceeding                                                      3 months  
                  Net cash from/[used in] investing activities

CASH FLOW USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
                   Net SDC development fund [utilised]/received             
 Net special project grant [utilised]/received
 Net special programme grant utilised
 Net cash [used in]/from financing activities

NET INCREASE /[DECREASE] IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF FINANCIAL YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR                            5

2015
RM

2014
RM

2,597,498

208,999
-

333,875
[8,547,958]
[1,202,498]

[6,626,986]

484,565
[457]

2,205,420
[91,420]

-

[6,610,084]

[2,376,634]
[576,103]

[4,028,878]

[595,924]
455,210

[9,562,821] [4,169,592]
[331,372] -

[9,894,193] [4,169,592]

52,770
[4,914]

-

91,420
[198,144]

92,814,993

47,856 92,708,269

[41,026,707]
-

27,769,414

[48,564.593]
[182,906]

[4,033,138]
[13,257,293] [52,780,637]

[23,103,630]
261,898,891

35,758,040
226,140,851

238,795,261 261,898,891
    

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - DECEMBER 31, 2015
1.    GENERAL INFORMATION

SABAH ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“SEDIA”) was established under 
the Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority Enactment 2009.  The Sabah State Legislative 
Assembly had approved the instrument for the establishment of SEDIA via the adoption of Sabah Economic 
Development and Investment Authority Enactment 2009 on January 15, 2009.

The Enactment was assented by Tuan Yang Terutama Negeri Sabah on February 23, 2009 and gazetted on 
February 26, 2009, thereafter officially commenced operations on March 2, 2009.

The main activities of SEDIA are to act as the single authority empowered to promote and accelerate 
the development of the Sabah Development Corridor (“SDC”) into a leading economic region 
and choice destination for investment, work and living and to ensure that social development 
and sustainable development are kept as priorities whilst driving economic growth in the Sabah 
Development Corridor. 

The total number of employees as at December 31, 2015 was 98 persons (2014: 94).

The address of the principal office of operation of SEDIA is:
 
Lot 1-2, Wisma SEDIA,
Off Jalan Pintas Penampang,
P. O. Box 17251,
88873 Kota Kinabalu,
SABAH, MALAYSIA. 

2.    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies are adopted by SEDIA and are consistent with applicable approved 
standards for private entities issued by the ‘Malaysian Accounting Standards Board’ (‘MASB’).

       Adoption of New Financial Reporting Framework

On February 14, 2014, the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (MASB) issued a new MASB approved 
accounting framework for private entities, the Malaysian Private Entity Reporting Standard (MPERS). 
MPERS is mandatory for adoption by all private entities for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2016.

MPERS is essentially the same as IFRS for SMEs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
in July 2009 except in relation to the requirements on income tax and property development activities. 

In October 2015, the MASB issued 2015 Amendments to the MPERS which is equivalent to IASB’s 
2015 Amendments to the IFRS for small and medium-sized entities. With this issuance, the accounting 
requirements for income tax have been aligned. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after January 1, 2017.

SEDIA’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with MPERS will be for the financial year ending 
December 31, 2016. SEDIA is currently assessing the impact of adoption of MPERS, including identification 
of the differences in existing accounting policies as compared to the new framework. As at the date of 
authorisation of issue of the financial statements, this assessment process is still on-going. Thus, the impact 
of adopting MPERS cannot be determined and estimated reliably now until the process is complete. 

      (a)    Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of SEDIA are prepared based on the historical cost except as disclosed in the notes 
to the financial statements and in compliance with the provisions of the Sabah Economic Development and 
Investment Authority Enactment 2009 and applicable approved accounting standards for private entities in 
Malaysia.
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(b) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 
losses. Upon the disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the net carrying amount is recognised in the income statement. 

i) Depreciation 

Property, plant and equipment purchased at a cost of RM2,000 below are expensed as incurred.  Depreciation of 
the property, plant and equipment is provided for on a straight-line basis to write-off the cost of each asset to its 
residual value over the estimated useful life at the following annual rates:

Motor Vehicles                                                               25%
Computers, Printers and Software                                                                                  33⅓%
Furniture, Fittings, Office Equipment and Renovation                                                                        20%

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

ii) Impairment of Assets

At each balance sheet date, the Authority reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment.  If any such indication exists, the impairment is measured by comparing 
the recoverable amount with the carrying amount of an asset and when the latter amount is higher, the asset is 
written down to the recoverable amount.  The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its net selling price 
and its value in use, which is measured by reference to discounted future cash flows.
 
An impairment loss is charged to the income statement immediately, unless the asset is carried at a revalued 
amount.  Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent of previously 
recognised revaluation surplus for the same asset. Should the impairment loss of an asset exceed its revaluation 
surplus, the remaining impairment loss is charged to the income statement.

Subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of an asset if carried at cost, is treated as a reversal of the 
accumulated impairment loss previously recognised in the income statement but the reversal is limited to the 
accumulated impairment loss previously recognized, and if carried at revalued amount, is credited directly to 
revaluation surplus. 

(c)   Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepayments

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments are carried at anticipated realisable values. Bad debts are written 
off in the financial year in which they are identified. An estimate is made for doubtful debts based on a review of 
all outstanding amounts at the financial year-end.

(d)    Other Payables and Accruals

Other payables and accruals are stated at the amounts, which the Authority is contracted or obligated to settle 
plus any incidental legal expenses.

(e)    SDC Development fund

Development fund is managed on behalf of, and funded by the Federal Government under the Ninth Malaysia 
Plan (9MP) and Tenth Malaysia Plan (10MP) for various projects, and used for Sabah Development Corridor
Programmes in Sabah. The fund will be recognised as a liability in the balance sheet when the rights to 
receive the funds are approved and the funds have been received.  

All receipts will be credited and all expenditures will be debited to this fund. Unutilised fund as of the balance 
sheet is shown as balance of the fund.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - DECEMBER 31, 2015 - (Continued)
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(f)     Special Programme Grant

These represent grants received from TERAJU and PEMANDU for the SME facilitation fund and National Talent 
Enhancement Programme (NTEP) fund.  The grant will be recognised as a liability in the balance sheet when the
rights to receive the grants are approved and the grants have been received.  

All receipts will be credited and all expenditures will be debited to this fund. Unutilised fund as of the balance 
sheet is shown as balance of the fund.

(g)    Special Project Grant

These represent grants received from the Ministry of Science, Technology and Innovation (MOSTI) for the Tea 
Tree Project and Herbal Medicinal Knowledge Base (HMKB).  The grants will be recognised as a liability in the
balance sheet when the right to receive the grants are approved and the grants have been received.

All receipts will be credited and all expenditures will be debited to this fund. Unutilised fund as of the balance 
sheet is shown as balance of the fund.

(h)     Interest from Development fund, special project grant and special programme grant

Interest income generated from development fund, special project grant and special programme grant is 
recognised as addition to the fund on time apportion basis.

(i)     Income

(i)     Operating grant
Operating grant is recognised in the income statement when the rights to receive the grants                                           
are approved and the grants have been received.

(ii)    Interest income
Interest income generated from operating fund is accrued on a time apportion basis, by reference to the principal 
outstanding and at the interest rate applicable.

Interest income transferred to operating fund is recognised in the income statement when there is approval 
obtained from Members of Authority.

(iii)     Other Income
Other income mainly represents sale of tender documents that is recognised when transfer of risks and rewards 
has been completed.

(j)      Interest Expense

All interest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowings are expensed as incurred.

(k)    Foreign Currency

The financial statements of SEDIA are presented in Ringgit Malaysia, the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which SEDIA operates (its functional currency).

Transactions in currencies other than in Ringgit Malaysia are converted to Ringgit Malaysia at the exchange
rates prevailing at the transaction dates or, where settlements have not yet been made at the end of the financial
year, the assets and liabilities are converted at the approximate exchange rates prevailing at the date.  All foreign 
exchange gains and losses are taken up in the income statement.

The principal closing rates used in the translation of foreign currency amount are as follows:

                                                                                                                         2015                                         2014
                                                                                                                           RM                                            RM

1 British Pound                                                                                                                 6.360                                               5.433
1 US Dolar                          4.292                                                   -
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(l)     Employee Benefits

(i)     Short-term benefits

Wages, salaries, allowances, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the year 
in which the associated services are rendered by employees of SEDIA. Short-term accumulating compensated 
absences such as paid annual leaves are recognised when services are rendered by employees that increase 
their entitlement to future compensated absences. Short-term non-accumulating compensated absences such as 
sick leave are recognised when the absence occur.

(ii)     Defined contribution plan

SEDIA is required by law to make monthly contributions to the Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”), a statutory 
defined contribution plan for all its eligible employees based on certain prescribed rates of the employees’ 
salaries. SEDIA contributions to EPF are disclosed separately.  The employee’s contributions to EPF are included 
in salaries and wages. The said contributions are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered 
service entitling them to the contributions. SEDIA has no further payment obligations once these contributions 
have been paid. 

(iii)    Defined Benefit Plans (Retirement Gratuity Scheme)

SEDIA operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its qualifying employees, both permanent and under 
contract. Under the plans, the employees who have worked for at least 10 years in SEDIA are entitled to retirement 
benefits of 1 month final salary for each year of service on attainment of the mandatory retirement age of 60 or 
early retirement on medical grounds or passed away before attaining the retirement age, or have completed the 
duration specified in their employment contracts. 

(m)     Taxation

Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of dividend income, pursuant to the tax 
exemption obtained from the Ministry of Finance mentioned in Note 14 which states that all income except for 
dividend income is exempted from tax.  It is measured using the tax rates that have been enacted at the balance 
sheet date.

(n)     Cash Flow Statement 

SEDIA adopts the indirect method in the preparation of the cash flow statement. 

Cash equivalents are short-term in nature, highly liquid investment that is readily convertible to cash with 
insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority

103  |    Annual Report 2015  



3.         PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

COST

At January 1, 2015
Additions
At December 31, 2015

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

At  January 1, 2015
Charge for the year
At December 31, 2015

NET CARRYING VALUE
As at December 31, 2015

As at December 31, 2014

Depreciation charge for the year
ended December 31, 2014

Motor Vehicles

RM

Computers, 
Printers and 

Software

RM

Furniture, Fittings, 
Office Equipment 

and Renovation

RM

Total 

RM
      

   922,266
-

110,906
2,696

1,972,592
2,218

    

   3,005,764
4,914

922,266 113,602 1,974,810 3,010,678

727,340
81,926

88,059
12,976

1,809,028
114,097

2,624,427
208,999

809,266 101,035 1,923,125 2,833,426

113,000 12,567 51,685 177,252

194,926 22,847 163,564 381,337

75,239 14,489 394,837 484,565

4.    OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

2015
RM

2014
RM

Other receivables and prepayments
Deposits
Advances

4,128,827
83,402

2,930

  1,739,166
        83,102

16,257     
Total 4,215,159 1,838,525

Included in property, plant and equipment are fully depreciated assets which are still in use, with a total 
cost of RM 2,510,184 (2014 : RM 1,809,261).

Included in other receivables and prepayments are prepayments made for Keningau Integrated Livestock 
Centre (KILC) project amounting to RM3,234,587 (2014: RM1,714,797) which is currently being financed 
by SEDIA’s operating grant. The project will subsequently be awarded to a third party. As of December 
31, 2015, the project has not been awarded to any third party. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - DECEMBER 31, 2015 - (Continued)
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7.   SPECIAL PROGRAMME GRANT

In 2012, SEDIA received two other types of grants from the Performance Management and Delivery Unit 
(PEMANDU) and Unit Peneraju Agenda Bumiputera (TERAJU). The grant from PEMANDU is for the National 
Talent Enhancement Programme (NTEP) under the Economic Transformation Programme (ETP) initiative.

The objective of NTEP is to increase the employability of graduates by providing on-the-job experience and 
industry-relevant training. The NTEP involves a 12-month traineeship programme designed to assist the 
graduates to develop industry-relevant skills through partnership with companies in the Electrical and Electronics 
sector. Companies with projects, processes or products emphasising on green technology and requiring talents 
with an engineering background are encouraged to participate.

 
2015

RM
2014

RM
As at January 1,
Add :  Grant received from TERAJU@SDC
Add:   Grant received from TERAJU@SDC-Mgt Fund
Add :  Interest income

Less : Utilisation of special programme grant for the year

7,228,442
22,000,000
15,000,000

322,284

11,261,580
   -

-
84,746

44,550,726 11,346,326

[9,552,870] [4,117,884]
As at December 31 34,997,856 7,228,442

7.   Special Project (R & D) Grant 2015
RM

 
2014

RM
As at January 1,
Add: Development fund received from Federal Government
Add : Adjustment for unutilised fund

Add : Interest income

Less: Utilisation of development fund for the year
          Interest income transferred 

246,594,469
173,420,992

-

     295,159,062
   115,500,000 

4,434 
420,015,461

4,041,101
410,663,496

9,970,785
424,056,562

[218,488,800]
[8,495,188]

420,634,281

      [174,039,812]
-

As at December 31 197,072,574            246,594,469

6.   SDC DEVELOPMENT FUND

2015
RM

2014
RM

Cash in banks
Cash at hand

238,793,261
2,000

 261,896,891
             2,000

Total 238,795,261 261,898,891

5.   CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
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2015
RM

2014
RM

As at January 1,
Add : Interest income

Less:  Utilisation of special project grant for the year
Less:  Interest income/balance transferred to Operation Fund

-
-

182,906
16,036

-
-
-

198,942
[146,253]

[52,689]
As at December 31 - -

9.   PROVISION FOR EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

8.   SPECIAL PROJECT (R & D) GRANT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - DECEMBER 31, 2015 - (Continued)

Financial Report

                                        Annual Report 2015   |   106

The grant from TERAJU is the SME Facilitation Fund for private projects in the Sabah Development Corridor 
(SDC) region that will contribute positively to the economic growth in Sabah and Malaysia in general and to help 
drive the Bumiputera Economic Agenda more effectively. During the year, SEDIA received additional grant of 
RM22,000,000.

In addition, SEDIA has received another RM15,000,000 from TERAJU for the purpose of Bumiputera 
Entrepreneur Development Programme for Bumiputera entrepreneurs in Sabah to surport their businesses, 
through capacity building, funding support and infrastructure development in order to increase Bumiputera 
participation in business.

SEDIA as the lead implementing agency for the Sabah Agro-Industrial Precinct (SAIP) has received the balance 
from the Ministry of Science, Technology and Innovation’s (MOSTI) grants for the purpose of the Tea Tree 
Project and Herbal Medicinal Knowledge Base (HMKB) Project from the Institute for Development Studies, 
Sabah (IDS) following the transfer of the project team from IDS to SEDIA. In 2014, all projects under MOSTI’s 
grant were completed.

This represents provision for retirement gratuity schemes for employees:
                                                                                                                 
             2015                                          2014
             RM                             RM
Provision for: 
         Retirement gratuity scheme                987,008                                  2,205,420

The maturity structure of the provisions is as follows:
           2015                          2014
             RM                             RM
           Within one year                 398,096                     416,513
         2 to 5 years                  588,912                                  1,788,907
                   987,008                               2,205,420

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of its retirement gratuity 
scheme is as follows:
           2015                                       2014
             RM                             RM
Present value of defined benefit obligations               987,008                                  2,205,420
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Amount recognised in the income statement in respect of the retirement gratuity scheme is as follows:
                                                                                                                 
                    2015                                               2014
                                  RM                            RM
Over provision in prior year                 [1,220,915]                      - 
Current service costs                                    333,875                               2,205,420
                       [887,040]                               2,205,420
 
Movement in the present value of the retirement gratuity scheme in the current year are as follows:

                 2015              2014
                   RM                              RM
At beginning of year                                           2,205,420                     -
Additions                        333,875                               2,205,420
Over provision in prior year                 [1,220,915]                                  -
Payment                       [331,372]                                             -  
At end of year                        987,008                   2,205,420

The most recent actuarial valuation of employee benefit liabilities or contingent was conducted on August 3, 
2016 by Actuarial Partners Consulting Sdn. Bhd. The present value of employee benefit obligations and related
current service cost is measured using the projected unit credit method. The principal assumptions used for the 
purposes of the valuation are as follows:

                2015                  2014                        %                   %
Discount rate: Corporate Bond worth AA             5.90                  4.18
Expected rate of salary increases              5.00               4.18
 

The mortality rate is based on the experience of assured lives in Malaysia from 1999 to 2013. The Standard
MO9903 announced as used in insurance industry. The defect rate is 10% of the death rate. Turnover rate 
corresponding to the average staff turnover rate is about 2% per year for permanent staff, while contract staff 
considered no withdrawal.

The management uses the best estimate of expected salary workers, the remaining years of service of the
appropriate discount rate from January 1, 2016 to determine current service cost. All staff have been included in 
the estimated cost of the current cost.

SEDIA operates unfunded retirement gratuity scheme and provision is made for benefits that eligible employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. Under this scheme, eligible employees 
are entitled to retirement benefits of one month salary each year of services on attainment of the retirement age 
of 60 given that the said employee has provided satisfactory service to the Authority for at least 10 years  or  early 
retirement on medical grounds or passed away before attainment age. The amounts recognised in the balance 
sheet are determined based on the the present value of amount due. 

Provision for employment benefits are recognised initially on the financial year ended December 31, 2015 to 
take into account the amount of SEDIA commitment when services are rendered by employees during the year. 
Provision is calculated based on the expectation that all staff providing services until the retirement age of 60 
years. Rating actual expectations may change each year based on the highest salary achievable for the current 
position held and discount rates. The discount rate used is 5.90%, the yield of Government Bond issued by Bank
Negara Malaysia (BNM). During the financial year ended December 31, 2015, the number of employees included 
in the obligation for employee benefits totalled 98 persons.



2015
RM

2014
RM

Interest income from SDC development fund
Interest income from operation fund
Other income
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange

8,495,188
52,770
25,247

-

-
 91,420
38,807

457
Total 8,573,205 130,684

11.   OTHER INCOME

2015
RM

2014
RM

Other payables
Accruals

538,394
701,116

546,995
1,250,200

Total 1,239,510 1,797,195

10.   OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - DECEMBER 31, 2015 - (Continued)

Financial Report

                                        Annual Report 2015   |   108



Sabah Economic Development and Investment Authority

109  |    Annual Report 2015  

2015
RM

2014
RM

Auditors’ Remuneration
Allowances for Members and Committees of he Authority
Salaries, Allowances and Benefits
EPF, SOCSO & Pension Contribution
Rental Expenses
Utilities Charges
Printing and Stationeries
Medical and Clinical Charges
Insurance
Entertainment and Hospitality
Training and Human Capital Development
Trade Missions and Investment Promotions
Exhibitions and Road Shows
Conference and Seminars
Corporate Branding and Marketing
Sponsorships
In-House Meeting Expenses
Publications, Multimedia and Advertisements
Postage and Courier Charges
Transportation, Leasing and Vehicle Maintenance
Airfares and Outstation Transport Charges
Subsistence Allowances
Lodging and Accommodations
Upkeep Of Office Equipment, Premise and Services
Depreciation
Subscription Fees, Technical Update and ICT Expenses
Legal, Professional, Research and Consultancy Charges
License, Registration and Assessment Fees
Other receivables written off
Miscellaneous Expenses
GST expenses

20,679
382,570

5,045,065
718,843
314,869
226,367
106,547
254,369
113,210
29,221

246,336
113,170
145,175
20,020

588,775
196,249
88,908
72,009
4,724

337,302
389,994
129,630
169,471
153,743
208,999
177,134
22,000
4,098
3,892

34,405
77,843

20,000
384,580

8,671,836
755,771
307,975
124,722
86,820

208,565
130,855
43,800

406,357
329,627
78,426
48,260

519,630
182,900
59,399

409,213
9,476

351,410
446,296
83,120

109,006
165,095
484,565
164,679
94,986
3,752
1,402

31,147
-

TOTAL 10,395,707 14,713,670

The details of operating expenses are as follows:

12.   OPERATING EXPENSES
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During the year, total allocation approved and received under the Tenth Malaysia Plan (10MP) for SDC projects 
are RM173,420,992 (2014:RM115,500,000).

16.  PROJECT DEVELOPMENT COMMITMENT

  Future Minimum Lease Payments

2015
RM

2014
RM

As of December 31:
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

-
49,980
29,660
11,460
10,500
5,250

303,678
31,680
11,360

-
-
-

Total 106,850 346,718

13.   STAFF COSTS  

2015
RM

2014
RM

Operating Fund:
Staff Cost
Over provision of employment benefit obligations in prior year

6,984,823
[1,220,915]

9,427,607
-

5,763,908 9,427,607

Included in staff costs is SEDIA’s contribution to Employee Provident Fund of RM653,497 (2014: RM671,155) 
and employment benefit obligations of [RM887,040] (2014:RM 2,205,420) .

14.  INCOME TAX

SEDIA has obtained tax exemption under Section 127 (3) of the Income Tax Act, 1967. All income, except for 
dividend income is exempted from tax beginning from year assessments 2010 until 2019.

15.  OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

SEDIA leases certain assets such as premise and office equipment. These leases are non-cancellable and 
expire on various dates through 2020. Future minimum annual lease payments are as follows:-
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LAPORAN KETUA AUDIT NEGARA
MENGENAI PENYATA KEWANGAN

PIHAK BERKUASA PEMBANGUNAN EKONOMI DAN PELABURAN SABAH (SEDIA)
BAGI TAHUN BERAKHIR 31 DISEMBER 2015

Laporan Mengenai Penyata Kewangan

Penyata Kewangan Pihak Berkuasa Pembangunan Ekonomi Dan Pelaburan Sabah (SEDIA) 
bagi tahun berakhir 31 Disember 2015 telah diaudit oleh wakil saya yang merangkumi 
Lembaran Imbangan Pada 31 Disember 2015 dan Penyata Pendapatan, Penyata Perubahan 
Dalam Ekuiti serta Penyata Aliran Tunai bagi tahun berakhir pada tarikh tersebut, ringkasan 
polisi perakaunan yang signifikan dan nota penjelasan lain.

Tanggungjawab Lembaga Pengarah Terhadap Penyata Kewangan

Lembaga Pengarah bertanggungjawab terhadap penyediaan dan persembahan penyata 
kewangan tersebut yang saksama selaras dengan piawaian pelaporan kewangan yang 
diluluskan di Malaysia dan Enakmen Pihak Berkuasa Pembangunan Ekonomi Dan Pelaburan 
Sabah (SEDIA) 2009.  Lembaga Pengarah juga bertanggungjawab terhadap kawalan 
dalaman yang ditetapkan perlu oleh pengurusan bagi membolehkan penyediaan penyata 
kewangan yang bebas daripada salah nyata yang ketara sama ada disebabkan oleh fraud 
atau kesilapan.

Tanggungjawab Juruaudit

Tanggungjawab saya adalah memberi pendapat terhadap penyata kewangan tersebut 
berdasarkan pengauditan yang dijalankan. Pengauditan telah dilaksanakan mengikut Akta 
Audit 1957 dan piawaian pengauditan yang diluluskan di Malaysia. Piawaian tersebut 
mengkehendaki saya mematuhi keperluan etika serta merancang dan melaksanakan 
pengauditan untuk memperoleh jaminan yang munasabah sama ada penyata kewangan 
tersebut bebas daripada salah nyata yang ketara.

Pengauditan meliputi pelaksanaan prosedur untuk memperoleh bukti audit mengenai amaun 
dan pendedahan dalam penyata kewangan. Prosedur yang dipilih bergantung kepada 
pertimbangan juruaudit, termasuk penilaian risiko salah nyata yang ketara pada penyata 
kewangan sama ada disebabkan oleh fraud atau kesilapan. Dalam membuat penilaian risiko 
tersebut, juruaudit mempertimbangkan kawalan dalaman yang bersesuaian dengan entiti 
dalam penyediaan dan persembahan penyata kewangan yang memberi gambaran yang
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benar dan saksama bagi tujuan merangka prosedur pengauditan yang bersesuaian tetapi 
bukan untuk menyatakan pendapat  mengenai keberkesanan kawalan dalaman entiti 
tersebut.  Pengauditan juga termasuk menilai kesesuaian polisi perakaunan yang diguna 
pakai dan kemunasabahan anggaran perakaunan yang dibuat oleh pengurusan serta 
persembahan penyata kewangan secara menyeluruh.

Saya percaya bahawa bukti audit yang saya peroleh adalah mencukupi dan bersesuaian 
untuk dijadikan asas bagi pendapat audit saya.

Pendapat

Pada pendapat saya, penyata kewangan ini memberikan gambaran yang benar dan 
saksama mengenai kedudukan kewangan Pihak Berkuasa Pembangunan Ekonomi Dan 
Pelaburan Sabah (SEDIA) pada 31 Disember 2015 dan prestasi kewangan serta aliran 
tunainya bagi tahun berakhir pada tarikh tersebut selaras dengan piawaian pelaporan 
kewangan yang diluluskan di Malaysia.

(ZAABA BIN ZAINUDDIN)
b.p KETUA AUDIT NEGARA
      MALAYSIA

KOTA KINABALU
22 Ogos 2016
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